



Developed by the American Indian Law Clinic of the University of Colorado School of Law through funding from a grant from the Colorado Bar Foundation.



A Guide to Colorado Legal Resources for Native Americans

of the approximately 44,200 Native Americans residing in the State of Colorado, more than 21,300 make their homes in the six county, (Adams, Arapahoe, Denver, Jefferson, Boulder and Douglas) metropolitan area. A historic migratory crossroads for numerous American Indian tribes and a former 1950's Bureau of Indian Affairs "Voluntary Relocation Center," Denver is often referred to as the "Hub of Indian Country." Unfortunately, the Native American population is one of the poorest, if not the poorest, in the state. The lack of financial resources is a major barrier to access to the justice system. This barrier is made even more formidable for Native Americans whose legal needs often involve complex, intertwined issues of federal, state and tribal law.

There has never been a formal study of the unmet legal needs of Native Americans which greatly hampers efforts to increase legal services to this population. Only anecdotal evidence exists of the systemic legal issues of pressing concern to the American Indian community. Out of concern for Colorado's Native American residents, a consortium of Native American service organizations, free legal service providers, the University of Colorado School of Law American Indian Law Clinic and Native American community representatives from the metro-Denver area, the "Colorado Native American Legal Needs Study Committee" ("Committee"), was established to investigate and recommend solutions for the unmet legal service needs. The initial member collaborating organizations of the Committee are: the Colorado Commission on Indian Affairs (Commissioners Ren Freeman and Stephen Moore, At Large Members and Karen Wilde-Rogers, Executive Secretary), Colorado Legal Services (Jon Asher, Executive Director), and the University of Colorado American Indian Law Clinic (Jill Tompkins, Director).

Before undertaking the study of unmet legal needs, the Committee believed that it was wise to create a directory of existing Colorado-based legal resources that are available and appropriate to meet the needs of Native Americans. It was thought that there is a communication gap between the legal service providers and the Native American community. There may be resources in existence that are not simply known to the potential users. Made possible through a generous grant from the Colorado Bar Foundation, and many hours of effort by University of Colorado School of Law student Stephanie Zehren Thomas, **A Guide to Colorado Legal Resources for Native Americans** was researched and compiled. Kelly Lohaus, Program Assistant for the Office of Clinical Programs, deserves much appreciation for her work in editing and formatting this publication.

A searchable, regularly updated version of the **Guide** is available on-line at: http://www.colorado.edu/Law/clinics/ilc. Please call (303) 492-0966 or e-mail us at indlaw@colorado.edu with any corrections or additions.

It is our hope that this **Guide** will provide valuable assistance to Native Americans in need of legal services in Colorado.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ALPHABETICAL LISTING	1-30
ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION	30-31
ARTS	31
CONSUMER ISSUES	31-34
CRIMINAL	34-37
DISCRIMINATION	37-39
ELDERLY	39 -4 1
EMPLOYMENT	41-42
FAMILY	42-62
HEALTH	62-63
HOUSING	63-66
ICWA	66
JUVENILE	66
PROBATE	66
PRO SE (Self-Representation) ONLY	67-70
PUBLIC BENEFITS	70-72
RELIGIOUS RIGHTS	72
TRIBAL GOVERNMENT RESOURCES	72
INDIAN LAW FIRMS	72-73

ALPHABETICAL LISTING

AARP

Jon Looney, State Director 1301 Pennsylvania Street, Suite 200 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 830-2277 (303) 764-5999 (Fax) www.aarp.org

AARP is a non-profit, non-partisan membership organization for people 50 and over. AARP provides information and resources; advocates on legislative, consumer, and legal issues; assists members to serve their communities; and offers a wide range of unique benefits, special products, and services for members.

Adams County Child Support Enforcement Unit

7190 Colorado Boulevard Commerce City, CO 80022 (303) 227-2233 http://www.co.adams.co.us donn.costanzo@dss.co.adams.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time

application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Adams County Justice Center

Karen Gee, District Administrator 1100 Judicial Center Drive Brighton, CO 80601 (303) 659-1161 www.17thjudicialdistrict.com (legal forms)

The Adams County Justice Center provides free legal forms on their website at www.17thjudicialdistrict.com. There is also a Self-Help Center at the Justice Center that offers forms and brochures with information relating to processing cases without an attorney, including how to pursue non-adversarial alternatives for resolving or avoiding litigation. Forms accessed from the Online Self-Help Center are free. Forms are also available for a fee at the Justice Center. Fees vary according to the type of form. The Self-Help Center has forms and information relating to the following types of cases: Dissolution of Marriage (Divorce); Allocation of Parental Responsibilities (Custody); Guardianships; Name Changes; County Court Traffic, Misdemeanor and Civil Cases; Small Claims; and Restraining Orders. See the Online Help-Center for additional information

Alamosa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

610 State Street P.O. Box 1310 Alamosa, CO 81101 (719) 589-2581 (719) 589-9794 (Fax) lhenders@fone.net

Provides services for establishing

and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

American Arbitration Association

1675 Broadway, Suite 2250 Denver, CO 80220-4602 (303) 831-0823 (877) 631-0823 (303) 832-3626 (Fax)

Nationwide provider of mediation, arbitration, and education/training. Services offered: arbitration, mediation/arbitration, settlement conferences, fact finding, mini-trials, and education and training.

American Civil Liberties Union

Mark Silverstein, Legal Director; Sue Armstrong, Executive Director; Dipak Patel, Intake Director 400 Corona Street Denver, CO 80218-3915 (303) 777-5482 (303) 777-1773 (Fax) www.aclu-co.org; http:// freedomnet.org/aclu.html msilver2@worldnet.att.net; sarmstrong@aclu-co.org; dpatel@aclu-co.org

The ACLU is a private, non-profit, pro bono provider that defends and protects the constitutional rights of all Americans. It provides legal counsel, works on legislation, and runs an educational program. If your constitutional rights have been violated, the intake officer will ask you to write a letter describing the situation. Your letter will be reviewed by the staff and a panel of attorneys. If the ACLU accepts your case, it will proceed on your behalf for free. Fee: None.

Arapahoe County Child Support Enforcement Unit

7305 S. Potomac Street, Suite 100 Centennial, CO 80112-4031 (303) 874-8700 (303) 874-8631 (Fax) childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Archuleta County Child Support Enforcement Unit

449 San Juan P.O. Box 240 Pagosa Springs, CO 81147 (970) 264-2184 (970) 264-2186 (Fax) erlinda.gonzalez@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Arnold and Porter

370 17th Street, Suite 4500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 863-1000 (303) 832-0428 (Fax)

Indian law firm.

Arnold and Porter

Alfred McDonnell 370 17th Street, Suite 4500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 863-2316 (303) 832-0428 (Fax) alfred_mcdonnell@aporter.com

Indian law attorney.

Arts Mediation Service (AMS) of Colorado Lawyers for the Arts

(CoLA)

Michelle Conkin, Esq., AMS and Legal Coordinator P.O. Box 48148 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 722-7994 (303) 778-6956 (Fax) cola@artstozoo.org

CoLA has joined a national network of volunteer lawyers for the arts organizations who are initiating mediation services for the arts community. AMS offers mediation to artists, non-profit arts organizations and arts businesses that need assistance in resolving or preventing disputes. Fee: Sliding scale per mediation session. Individual household: \$60,000 maximum income; Organization or business: \$150,000 maximum budget.

Baca County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1001 South Main P.O. Box 1157 Lamar, CO 81502 (719) 336-7486 eosbment@prowerscounty.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement.

Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Prowers County Department of Social Services.

Bent County Child Support Enforcement Unit

215 Second Street
P.O. Box 326
Las Animas, CO 81054
(719) 456-2620
(719) 456-2945 (Fax)
thomas.hobbs@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Better Business Bureau

1920 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204-4039 (303) 758-8200

The BBB provides low-cost mediation for disputes between consumers and businesses. The BBB cannot provide legal advice, but will refer consumers to appropriate government agencies for legal information.

Boulder County Child Support Enforcement Unit

529 Coffman, Suite 100A Longmont, CO 80501 (303) 678-6300 (303) 678-6309 (Fax) http://www.co.boulder.co.us./ social/socialsv.html dsmith@co.boulder.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Boulder County Dept. of Social Services

Child Support Enforcement Unit 529 Coffman, Suite 100-A Longmont, CO 80501 (303) 678-6300

Provides child support enforcement services for Boulder county residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20.

Boulder County District Attorney's Victim/ Witness Assistance Program

1777 6th St.
Boulder, CO 80306
(303) 441-3700
boulder.da@co.boulder.co.us

Provides services to victims of crime in Boulder County. Services include advocacy, crisis counseling, and referral. Also provides legal information and education on the criminal system and crime prevention services. Fee: None.

Boulder County Legal Services

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.com

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Boulder District Court

Christine Fleetwood, Family Court Facilitator 1777 Sixth Street Boulder, CO 80306-4249 (303) 441-1717

A Divorce Orientation Video is shown every Tuesday at the Boulder County Justice Center, Courtroom F, on the First Floor, from 12:00 to 1:00 p.m. The video goes through the entire process of divorce and answers questions about divorce

forms. After the thirty-minute video presentation, the Family Court Facilitator will be available to answer questions. The Family Court Facilitator will NOT provide legal advice, assistance, or representation. Fee: None.

Brega and Winters, PC

John Nelson 1700 Lincoln Avenue, Suite 1300 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-9400 (303) 861-9109 (Fax) jnelson@brega-winters.com

Indian law firm.

Brighton/Commerce City Child Support Units

7190 Colorado Blvd, 6th Floor Commerce City, CO 81022 (303) 227-2233

Provides child support enforcement services for Adams County residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20

Broomfield County Child Support Enforcement Unit

6 Garden Center Broomfield, CO 80020 (720) 887-2261 (720) 294-9677 (Fax) kbeye@ci.broomfield.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

CDR Associates (formerly the Center for Dispute Resolution)

100 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 120 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 442-7367 www.mediate.org

CDR Associates is a non-profit organization that provides facilitation/mediation, training, and consultation in conflict resolution, decision-making assistance, and dispute resolution. Fee: Varies.

Chaffee County Child Support Enforcement Unit

641 South West Third Street
P.O. Box 1007
Salida, CO 81201
(719) 539-6627
(719) 539-6430 (Fax)
http://www.chaffee-county.com/
sozanne.dennis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support.

The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Park County.

Cheyenne County Child Support Enforcement Unit

51 South First
P.O. Box 146
Cheyenne Wells, CO 80810
(719) 767-5629
(719) 767-5101 (Fax)
laura.escudero@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Child Support Enforcement Clinic

Grove Community School 4050 East 14th Avenue

Denver, CO 80220 (303) 399-6510

Attorneys from the Denver Bar Association are available once a month to help people who are having difficulty collecting child support. Call for more information.

Child Support Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway, Ste. 160 Golden, CO 80401-6010

Golden, CO 80401-6010 (303) 271-4300

Provides child support enforcement services for Jefferson and Gilpin County residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20. Cities: Golden, Lakewood, Arvada, Westminster

Clear Creek County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4090 (Fax) ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the

CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Jefferson County Department of Social Services.

Colorado Attorney General Antitrust Unit

1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-3613 (303) 866-5691 (Fax)

Enforcement of antitrust laws through criminal prosecution and civil lawsuits under state antitrust and unfair practices, laws and civil litigation under federal antitrust laws. No fee.

Colorado Civil Rights Division

Wendell L. Pryor, Director 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050 Denver, CO 80202-5143 (303) 894-2997 (303) 894-7830 (Fax) www.dora.state.co.us/Civil-Rights

The Colorado Civil Rights Division administers and enforces Colorado's civil rights laws in employment, housing, and public accommodations. The Colorado Revised Statutes (1988) prohibit discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations based on race, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, creed, color, marital status (housing and public accommodations), and familial status (housing only). Discrimination in employment based on age or marriage to a coworker is also prohibited. The CCRD implements the civil rights statutes through administrative

enforcement (compliance) and outreach (research and education). Most services are free. There is a \$5 fee for copies of laws, rules, and regulations.

Colorado Department of Labor & Employment

Labor Standards Unit 1515 Arapahoe Street, Tower 2, #375 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 318-8441 (303) 318-8400 (Fax) www.state.co.us

Administers state labor laws regarding wage claims, child labor laws, minimum wage, and labor relations. Fee: None.

Colorado Department of Labor & Employment

Division of Workers'
Compensation, Customer Service
1515 Arapahoe Street
Denver, CO 80202-2117
(303) 318-8700
www.state.co.us

Administers state laws regarding workers' compensation. Can assist employers and employees regarding claims for benefits for on-the-job injuries. Provides alternative dispute programs for workers' compensation claims. Fee: None.

Colorado Legal Initiatives Project

Michael Brewer, Legal Director P.O. 300397 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 282-5602

A non-profit law office specializing in cases concerning discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity, or HIV status.

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493– 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203 Grand Junction, CO 81506 (970) 243-7817 (970) 243-7814 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave

La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender (main)

110 16th Street, Suite 800

Denver, CO 80202 (303) 620-4888 (303) 620-4931 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Alamosa Regional Office

420 San Juan Avenue Alamosa, CO 81101 (719) 589-9615 (719) 589-6178 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/

index.html

alamosa.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, Saguache.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Arapahoe County

7208 South Tucson Way #201 Englewood, CO 80112 (303) 799-9001 (303) 792-0822 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html arapahoe.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Arapahoe.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Boulder Regional Office

2501 Walnut Street, Suite 100 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 444-2322 (303) 449-6432 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html boulder.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Boulder.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Brighton Regional Office

4710 East Bromley Lane Brighton, CO 80601 (303) 659-4274 (303) 659-6935 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html brighton.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Adams, Broomfield.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Colorado Springs Regional Office

415 South Sahwatch Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 475-1235 (719) 475-1476 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html cosprings.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties

served: El Paso, Teller.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Denver Regional Office

110 16th Street, Suite 1300 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 620-4999 (303) 620-4987 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html denver.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: City and County of Denver.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Douglas Regional Office

611 East Wilcox, Unit E Castle Rock, CO 80104 (303) 688-3081 (303) 688-9682 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html douglas.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Douglas, Elbert, Lincoln.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Durango Regional Office

1047 Main Avenue, #139 Durango, CO 81301 (970) 247-9284 (970) 259-6497 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html durango.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases.

\$25 application fee. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Fort Collins Regional Office

1 Old Town Square, #210 Fort Collins, CO 80524 (970) 493-1212 (970) 498-8867 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html ftcollins.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties represented: Larimer.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Glenwood Springs Regional Office

311-1/2 8th Street Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 (970) 945-5828 (970) 945-8476 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html glenwood.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Garfield, Pitkin, Rio Blanco.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Golden Regional Office

17700 S. Golden Road, #220 Golden, CO 80401 (303) 279-7841 (303) 279-3082 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html golden.defenders@state.co.us Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Gilpin, Jefferson.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Grand Junction Regional Office

105 West Main Street, Suite A Grand Junction, CO 81501 (970) 245-9122 (970) 245-1170 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html grandjunction.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Mesa.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Greeley Regional Office

822 7th St., Suite 250 Greeley, CO 80631 (970) 353-8224 (970) 352-8293 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html greeley.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Kit Carson, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Weld, Yuma.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, La Junta Regional Office

402 Santa Fe Avenue, Suite 105 La Junta, CO 81050 (719) 384-5448 (719) 384-5762 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/

index.html lajunta.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Baca, Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Otero, Prowers.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Montrose Regional Office

9 South Townsend Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 249-4791 (970) 249-5318 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html montrose.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, San Miguel.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Pueblo Regional Office

132 West B Street, #200 Pueblo, CO 81003 (719) 546-0004 (719) 583-0746 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html pueblo.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Pueblo, Custer, Fremont.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Salida Regional Office

132 F Street Salida, CO 81201 (719) 539-3521 (719) 539-4597 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html salida.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Chaffee, Fremont, Park.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Silverthorne Regional Office

221 Summit Place, Suite 252
P.O. Box 1636
Silverthorne, CO 80498
(970) 468-9363
(970) 468-9389
(970) 468-9214 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Clear Creek, Eagle, Lake, Summit.

silverthorne.defenders@state.co.us

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Steamboat Springs Regional Office

620 Oak Street
P.O. Box 773539
Steamboat Springs, CO 80477
(970) 879-0645
(970) 879-7231 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
steamboat.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Grand, Moffat, Routt, Jackson.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Sterling Regional Office

208 H & B Building, 118 Main Street Sterling, CO 80751 (970) 522-5032 (970) 522-7570 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html sterling.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Kit Carson, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Yuma.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Trinidad Regional Office

134 West Main Street, #32 Trinidad, CO 81082 (719) 846-9278 (719) 846-2089 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html trinidad.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Huerfano, Las Animas.

Colorado State Public Defender, Regional Trial Office

Charles F. Garcia 110 16th Street, Suite 1300 Denver, CO 80202-5215 (303) 620-4999

Court appointed lawyers to represent indigent people charged with crimes. The Colorado Public Defender does NOT handle civil work, no divorce, no landlord/

tenant case or auto accidents (unless crime related). Fee: None.

Community Housing Services, Inc.

1905 Sherman, Suite 745Denver, CO 80203(303) 831-1935 Landlord/Tenant(303)831-1966 Housing Referral

As a private, non-profit organization, Community Housing Services serves the community by offering landlord/tenant information and referrals on housing-related issues and legal resources. Free Services. Publication "Know Your Rights" available for \$11 (\$13 with postage and handling). Landlord/Tenant: (303) 831-1935; Housing Referral: (303) 831-1966. Also publish a subsidized housing list for individuals and families, and a Landlord/Tenant Handbook entitled, "Know Your Rights: The Colorado Guide for Tenants and Landlords." This book describes the laws in Colorado as they apply to landlord/tenant relationships and includes citations from statutes and case law.

Conejos County Child Support Enforcement Unit

12989 County Road G5 P.O. Box 68 Conejos, CO 81129 (719) 376-5455 (719) 376-2389 (Fax) ricardo.expinoza@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families

when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Costilla County Child Support Enforcement Unit

123 Gaspar Street
P.O. Box 249
San Luis, CO 81152
(719) 672-4131
(719) 672-4141 (Fax)
alfredo.chavez@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Crowley County Child Support Enforcement Unit

631 Main Street, Suite 101

P.O. Box 186 Ordway, CO 81063 (719) 267-3456 (719) 267-9959 (Fax) robert.keenan@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Custer County Child Support Enforcement Unit

205 South Sixth Street, Courthouse P.O. Box 929 Westcliffe, CO 81252 (719) 783-2371 (719) 783-9085 (Fax) laura.lockhart@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or

privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Delta County Child Support Enforcement Unit

560 Dodge Street, Courthouse Annex P.O. Box 290 Delta, CO 81416-0290 (970) 874-2063 (970) 874-2069 (Fax) leslie@deltacounty.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Delta Free Legal Services

Tom Nelson, Attorney Coordinator P.O. Box 663 Montrose, CO 81402 (970) 240-8697 County served: Delta

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Bankruptcy Clinics

U.S. Bankruptcy Court, U.S. Courts Custom House Building 721 19th Street, Room 125 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association presents FREE informational clinics on bankruptcy for debtors. These clinics are designed for the pro se (do-it-yourself) litigant. They are intended to provide an OVERVIEW only. They will assist attendees in understanding the bankruptcy process and forms. Topics reviewed will include how bankruptcy can eliminate debts, the difference between Chapter 7 and Chapter 13, the effect on credit ratings and which forms are required for filing. Issues of creditor harassment, what a collection agency cannot say to you and how to fight back if you are harassed will also be addressed. The clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Volunteer attorneys cannot answer specific or detailed questions concerning unique individual circumstances, provide specific legal advice for individuals, or provide individual representation. Free. Clinics are held the 2nd Tuesday of each month from 1:30 - 3:00 p.m. For more information, call Carolyn Ferber or Kari Brandt at the Denver Bar Association at (303) 860-1115.

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Small Claims and Collections Clinics

Denver County Court, Civil Division, 4th Floor 1515 Cleveland Place Denver, CO 80202 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association sponsors these FREE informational clinics to teach people how to file their own small claims cases in court, and how to collect on the judgments. Tips include gathering information, forms (where to get them and how to complete them), filing (how and where), defending your position (what to do and not do), and court procedure. Collection clinics provide tips on how to collect your judgment. General questions are welcome but the clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Small Claims clinics are held on the 3rd Tuesday of each month. Collections Clinics are held on the 3rd Thursday of each month.

Denver County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 Federal Boulevard
Denver, CO 80204
(720) 944-2960
(720) 944-2660 (Fax)
http://www.denvergov.org/dephome.asp?depid=61
kathleen.rodriguez@dhs.co.denver.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the

interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Denver County Do-It-Yourself Divorce Clinics

1437 Bannock Street
Denver, CO
(720) 865-8440
www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms);
www.denbar.org (Denver schedule)

Denver District Court Self-Help Centers, partnered with volunteer attorneys from the Denver Bar Association, offer these FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court and on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). This clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Divorce Clinics are held in Denver County the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Denver Department of Human Services

Denver City Attorney's Office 1200 Federal Blvd. Denver, CO 80204 (720) 944-2960

Provides services to non-public

assistance applicants and public assistance recipients in Denver with regard to establishing paternity, establishing a child support order, and enforcing child support orders. No fee required for public assistance recipients. One-time \$20 waivable fee is required for non-public assistance applicants.

Denver Dept. of Human Services Clinic

Mayor's Office on Workforce Development 1200 Federal Boulevard, Room 1034 Denver, CO (720) 944-2594

This FREE informational clinic presents information about visitation/parenting time, contempt citation (family law matters only), child support issues, custody issues, and other family law issues. Although an attorney will be running the clinic, the clinic DOES NOT offer legal advice or representation and is only meant as an INFORMATIONAL RESOURCE about the how's and why's of going to court and getting things done right and legally. Free. Clinics will be offered the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 5:30 -7:00 p.m.

Denver Dist. Atty's Office - Econ. Crime Unit

Phillip A. Parrott, Chief Deputy D.A., Lisa Curtis, Director of Consumer Services 201 West Colfax Avenue, Dept. 801 Denver, CO 80202 (720) 913-9179

Investigates and files criminal cases violating Title 18 statutes (theft, forgery, computer crime), the Colorado Securities Act, and the Colorado Consumer Protection Act, where Denver is the place of

business or consumer/victim's residence. Special focus on financial exploitation of adults at risk. Referrals and self-help materials provided. Fee: None. Fraud Hotline Intake: (720) 913-9015; Administration: (720) 913-9182 (Hearing Impaired).

Denver Indian Center

4407 Morrison Road Denver, CO 80219 (303) 936-2688 (303) 936-2699 (Fax)

Maintains and promotes the culture of Native American groups and people of this community, to offer health education, economic assistance, services and resources.

Dolores County Child Support Enforcement Unit

409 North Main, Courthouse P.O. Box 485 Dove Creek, CO 81324 (970) 677-2240 (970) 677-2859 (Fax) janet.crawford@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants

without income restrictions.

Don Brantley Miller

Don Miller 1305 Cedar Avenue Boulder, CO 80304 (303) 545-5533

Represents tribes and tribal entities exclusively in enforcement of tribal rights, not individual Native Americans.

Dorsey and Whitney

370 17th Street Suite 4400 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 629-3400

Indian law firm.

Douglas County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time

application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Elbert and Lincoln counties.

Eagle County Child Support Enforcement Unit

Eagle County Department of Social Services- 500 Broadway Street P.O. Box 660 Eagle, CO 81631 (970) 328-8840 (970) 328-8829 (Fax) www.eagle-county.com kathleen.lyons@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

El Paso County Bar Pro Bono at Colorado Legal Services

Steve Flynn, Attorney Coordinator 617 S. Nevada Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 471-0380 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) Counties served: Chaffee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, Teller

El Paso County Child Support Enforcement Unit

30 East Pikes Peak Avenue, Suite 203 Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 457-6331 (719) 457-6340 (Fax) http://www.co-childsupport.com/elpaso mcrago@policy-studies.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Elbert County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm susan.walton1@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support;

and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Douglas County Department of Social Services.

Faegre and Benson, LLP

1900 15th Street Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 546-1320 (303) 449-5426 (Fax)

Indian law firm.

Family Support Division 18th Judicial District

District Attorney's Office, Child Support Unit 7305 S. Potomac, Suite 100 Englewood, CO 80112-4031 (303) 643-4630

Provides child support enforcement services for residents of Arapahoe, Douglas and Elbert Counties who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20 Cities: Englewood, Littleton, Parker, Highlands Ranch, Castle Rock.

Family Tree, Inc., Women In Crisis

Betty House, Legal Advocacy

Supervisor P.O. Box 1586 Arvada, CO 80001 (303) 271-6559

Provides advocacy, safe shelter, food, clothing, an on-site health clinic, individual and group support, legal advocacy, case management, community referrals, and children's programs for victims of domestic violence. Women In Crisis also provides domestic violence prevention and community education. A family law attorney and paralegal facilitate free legal clinics the first and third Wednesday of every month, with general information about divorce, custody, separation, and restraining orders. These free clinics are held at the Family Tree building at 3805 Marshall Street in Wheat ridge. The legal clinics are meant to provide GENERAL information only, and the attorney will not provide individual legal advice or representation. In addition, victims of domestic violence can attend Restraining Order Clinics at the Jefferson County Courthouse. The Restraining Order Clinics are held twice a day, Monday through Friday, at 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. in the Victim Witness Office of the Courthouse, which is located on the first floor. The Restraining Order Clinics are hosted by victim advocates from Family Tree, and will help victims understand the process for seeking a Temporary Restraining Order against an abuser. The victim advocates will assist victims in completing the legal forms for a Temporary Restraining Order, will accompany them through court to provide emotional support, and, once the Temporary Restraining Order is granted, will go with them to the sheriff's office to ensure that the TRO is served on the abuser. Victim advocates will also accompany victims to the Permanent Restraining Order hearing, if necessary. These victim advocates are NOT attorneys and CANNOT provide legal advice or

representation. Free. 24-hour crisis line: (303) 420-6752.

Federal Trade Commission

Consumer Response Center 600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Room H-130 Washington, DC 20580 (877) 382-4357 (202) 326-2012 (Fax) www.ftc.gov

The mission of the Federal Trade Commission is to protect consumers from unfair and deceptive trade practices and to keep the market free fair and free for competition in the marketplace. The FTC administers the Federal Trade Commission Act and a number of trade regulation rules and special statutes such as the Consumer Credit Protection Act. The FTC cannot handle private disputes but welcomes consumer complaints that may indicate a need for action in the public interest. Identity Theft Complaints: (877) 438-4338.

First Judicial District Bar Assoc. LAP

Clifford O. Stone, Jr., Esq., Executive Director P.O. Box 2311 Littleton, CO 80161-2311 (303) 216-0851 (303) 721-9532 (Fax)

The First Judicial District Bar Association Legal Assistance Program (LAP) provides free and low-cost legal information, advice, and representation to senior citizens 55-years of age and older residing ONLY in Jefferson and Gilpin counties. Prospective clients should call the LAP phone number and make an appointment. Free and low-cost legal information, advice and representation. Must be 55-

years of age and older, and must reside in Jefferson or Gilpin County.

Fredericks, Pelcyger, Hester and White

1075 S. Boulder Road, Suite 305 Louisville, CO 80027 (303) 673-9600

Indian law firm.

Fremont County Child Support Enforcement Unit

172 Justice Center Road Canon City, CO 81212 (719) 275-2318 (719) 269-2339 (Fax) fremontcse@yahoo.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Garfield County Child Support Enforcement Unit

Garfield County Department of Social Services; 108 8th Street., Suite 300 (physical) P.O. Box 580 Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 (970) 945-9191 (970) 928-0465 (Fax) joy.davis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Pitkin County.

Garfield Legal Services, Inc.

Cheryl Hurst, Director P.O. Box 1890 Glenwood Springs, CO 81602 (970) 945-8858 (970) 945-7785 (Fax) County served: Garfield

Gateway Battered Women's Shelter

Jeneen Klippel-Worden, Community Relations Coordinator P.O. Box 914 Aurora, CO 80040 (303) 343-1856

Provides counseling, support services, and shelter facilities to victims of domestic violence. In addition, Victim Advocates are available to accompany victims through the court process to provide emotional support. The Victim Advocates are not attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. 24-hr Crisis Line: (303) 343-1851.

Gilpin County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Pkwy. Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4300 (Fax) ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Jefferson County Department of Social Services.

Grand County Child Support Enforcement Unit

620 Hemlock P.O. Box 204 Hot Sulphur Springs, CO 80451 (970) 725-3331 (970) 725-3696 (Fax)

phillip.maes@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Jackson County.

Grandparents Resource Center

P.O. Box 27064 Denver, CO 80227 (303) 980-5707 (810) 885-8281 (Fax)

Provides counseling and advocacy to grandparents/parents without custody who seek custody or visitation with grandchildren/children. Attorney on staff to answer legal questions on a sliding scale fee basis. Free legal referrals. Fee: Sliding scale. Free legal referrals.

Greene, Meyer and McElrov

1007 Pearl Street, Suite 240 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 442-2021

Indian law firm.

Gunnison County Child Support Enforcement Unit

225 North Pine Street, Suite A Gunnison, CO 81230 (970) 641-3244 (970) 641-3738 (Fax) sharon.deetz@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Hinsdale County.

Heart of the Rockies Bar Association, Pro Bono Program

Dale R. Enck P.O. Box 1420 Buena Vista, CO 81211 (719) 395-2500 (719) 394-4080 (Fax) County served: Chaffee

Hinsdale County Child Support Enforcement Unit

225 North Pine Street, #A Gunnison, CO 81230 (970) 641-3244 (970) 641-3738 (Fax) sharon.deetz@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Gunnison County Department of Social Services.

Holland and Hart, LLP

Jennifer Harvey 555 17th Street Suite 3200 P.O. Box 8749 Denver, CO 80201 (303) 295-8244 (303) 295-8261 (Fax) jharvey@hollandhart.com

Indian law attorney.

Holland and Hart, LLP

Peter Houtsma 555 17th Street Suite 3200 P.O. Box 8749 Denver, CO 80201 (303) 295-8000 (303) 295-8261 (Fax) phoutsma@hollandhart.com

Indian law attorney.

Housing For All, Metro Denver Fair Housing Center

1600 Downing Street, Suite 650 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 296-6949

As a private, non-profit organization, HFA serves the community by advocating on behalf of victims of unlawful housing discrimination. HFA provides intake and assessment of fair housing complaints for referral to HUD, the Colorado Civil Rights Division, and/or private attorneys. Services offered also include fair housing training for landlords, apartment associations, realtors, community service agencies, and the general public. See HFA's publication, Fair Housing Guide: Fair Housing Today for a Better Tomorrow, which details the specifications of the Federal Fair Housing Act and lists resources for assistance to housing discrimination victims.

Huerfano County Child Support Enforcement Unit

121 West 6th Street Walsenburg, CO 81089 (719) 738-2810 (719) 738-2549 (Fax) hcdss@webcoast2coast.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the

CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Indian Law Clinic, Univ. of CO at Boulder

Jill Tompkins, Executive Director Campus Box 404 Boulder, CO 80309 (303) 492-0966 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

The Indian Law Clinic represents Indian people and groups or tribes with unique Federal Indian Law issues. The clinic serves Denver and Boulder-area Native Americans. The Clinic works on issues such as the Indian Child Welfare Act, denial of health or education benefits, and employment discrimination cases.

Jackson County Child Support Enforcement Unit

620 Hemlock
P.O. Box 204
Hot Sulphur Springs, CO 80480
(970) 725-3331
(970) 725-3696 (Fax)
phillip.maes@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the

CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Grand County Department of Social Services.

Jefferson County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4091 (Fax) http://ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Clear Creek and Gilpin counties.

Jefferson County Divorce Clinics

100 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO (303) 271-6102 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms)

Jefferson County offers FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing for a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court or on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). The clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to available options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Clinics are held on the 2nd Wednesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Jefferson County Hall of Justice

Toni, Coordinator, Self-Help Center P.O. Box 281095 Lakewood, CO 80228-8095 (303) 271-6102

Provides pro se (do it yourself) packets of forms, help, and information (NOT legal assistance). The Self-Help Center does not accept appointments, help will be provided on a first come, first served basis. The Center can provide procedural assistance in the areas of divorces, legal separation, and district and county civil matters. Pro se forms can be purchased at the Center, and range in cost from \$.75 to \$10. Call for more information. None.

Jones and Keller, PC

Robin Kovash World Trade Center - 1625 Broadway 16th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 573-1600 (303) 573-8133 (Fax) rkovash@joneskeller.com

Kelly, Haglund, Garnsey and Kahn LLC

Walter Garnsey 1441 18th Street, Suite 300 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 296-9412 (303) 293-8705 (Fax) wgarnsey@khgk.com

Indian law attorney.

Kiowa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1305 Goff St., Courthouse P.O. Box 187 Eads, CO 80461 (719) 438-5541 (719) 438-5370 (Fax) dennis.pearson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Kit Carson County Child Support Enforcement

Unit

252 South 14th Street P.O. Box 70 Burlington, CO 80807 (719) 346-8732 (719) 346-8066 (Fax) lorraine.madder@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

La Plata County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1060 E. Second Avenue Durango, CO 81301 (970) 382-6144 (970) 385-5269 (Fax) http://co.laplata.co.us/ humansvces.htm patricia.carlson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support.

The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves San Juan County.

Lake County Child Support Enforcement Unit

112 1/2 W 5th Street P.O. Box 884 Leadville, CO 80461 (719) 486-1673 (719) 486-4164 (Fax) carmen.mora@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Larimer County Bar Legal Aid Loveland Pro Bono

Kris Merkel, Coordinator

P.O. Box 1692 Ft. Collins, CO 80522 (970) 490-6082 County served: Larimer

Larimer County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1501 Blue Spruce Drive Fort Collins, CO 81524-2000 (970) 498-6458 (970) 498-6310 (Fax) http://www.co.larimer.co.us/depts/humanservices/ child_support.htm bernscba@co.larimer.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Las Animas County Child Support Enforcement Unit

204 South Chestnut Street Trinidad, CO 81082 (719) 846-2276 (719) 846-4269 (Fax) cse@activematrix.net

Provides services for establishing

and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Lincoln County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE

units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Douglas County Department of Social Services.

Logan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

508 South 10th Avenue
P.O. Box 1746
Sterling, CO 80751
(970) 522-2194
(970) 521-0853 (Fax)
http://www.loganco.gov/social/
Default.htm
charla.peterson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Maynes, Bradford, Shipps and Sheftel

West Building, 8358 E. Second Ave, Suite 123 Durango, CO 81302-2717 (970) 247-1755

Indian law firm.

Mesa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

510 29 1/2 Road P.O. Box 20000 Grand Junction, CO 81502-5035 (971) 248-2780 (970) 248-2883 (Fax) http://www.mesacounty.info; http://www.mcdss.co.gov kamde@mcdss.co.gov

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Mesa County Pro Bono Project, Inc.

Elizabeth Lynch, Pro Bono Coordinator 1129 Colorado Avenue Grand Junction, CO 81501 (970) 244-3816 (970) 243-5984 (Fax) County served: Mesa

Metro Volunteer Lawyers

Sally Maresh, Director 1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor, #400 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-8210 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.denbar.org/mvl/metrovl

Volunteer attorneys provide representation to INDIGENT clients in certain types of civil cases including family law, bankruptcy, insurance, wills and guardianship. POTENTIAL CLIENTS MUST FIRST CONTACT COLORADO LEGAL SERVICES at (303) 837-1313 for a telephone interview before contacting Metro Volunteer Lawyers. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Adams, Arapahoe, Denver, Douglas, Elbert, Jefferson.

Mineral County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1015 6th Street P.O. Box 40 Del Norte, CO 81132 (719) 657-3381 (719) 657-4013 (Fax) james.berg@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served

by Rio Grande County Department of Social Services.

Moffat County Child Support Enforcement Unit

595 Breeze Street Craig, CO 81625 (970) 824-8282 (970) 824-9552 (Fax) http://www.co.moffat.co.us/ SocialServices laura.willems@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Montezuma County Child Support Enforcement Unit

109 W. Main Street, #203 (Courthouse) Cortez, CO 81321-3179 (970) 565-3769 (970) 565-0172 (Fax) nila.tortoriello@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Montrose County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 N. Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Ouray and San Miguel

Morgan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

800 E. Beaver Avenue P.O. Box 220 Fort Morgan, CO 80701 (970) 542-3530 (970) 542-3415 (Fax) marilyn.neihart@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

National Assoc. of Counsel for Children (NACC)

Marvin Ventrell, Executive Director, Colene Flynn Robinson, Staff Attorney Kempe Children's Center, 1825 Marion Street, Suite 340 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 864-5320 (303) 864-5351 (Fax)

The NACC is a national non-profit child advocacy and professional membership association headquartered in Denver. The NACC provides training and technical assistance to attorneys and

other professionals in children's court proceedings and engages in policy advocacy. The NACC also provides general information on children and the law and professional referrals to the public at no charge. The NACC does not provide direct legal services. General information on children and the law and professional referrals available to the public at no charge.

Native American Rights Fund

John Echohawk, Executive Director 1506 Broadway Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 447-8760 (303) 443-7776 (Fax) www.narf.org

Non-profit organization devoted to defending and promoting the legal rights of Indian people. NARF attorneys (most are Native Americans) defend tribes who otherwise cannot bear the financial burden of obtaining justice in the courts of the United States.

Neighborhood Justice Center, Office of the District Attorney

Jerry O'Mare, Program Manager 105 E. Vermijo Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 520-6016

The Neighborhood Justice Center, a division of the Fourth Judicial District Attorney's Office, was created to help citizens peacefully resolve disputes through mediation. It is designed to help reduce the caseloads of the courts and to provide immediate help for those who experience personal as well as interpersonal conflict. To achieve these ends, the Center provides mediators who strive to assist people in finding meaningful

solutions to conflict. Disputes of minor civil or criminal misdemeanors are handled. Fee: None.

North American Indian Legal Services, Inc.

P.O. Box 150239 Lakewood, CO 80215 (720) 840-5438 (303) 988-2028 (Fax) www.nailsinc.org info@nailsinc.org

The American Indian Juvenile Justice and Mentoring Project provides attorney services, prevention services, and referral services. American Indian juveniles in Denver, Boulder, Araphaoe, Jefferson, Douglas, and Adams County may use Project services, whether tribally enrolled or not. Project attorney and referral services are generally provided at no cost to indigent Indian families.

Northeast Colorado Legal Services

Linda Grippen, Secretary 350 Hagen, NJC Tech Building Sterling, CO 80701 (970) 522-6391 (970) 522-6393 (Fax) Counties served: Kit Carson, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Yuma

Northwest CO Legal Services

Barbara Williams, Coordinator P.O. Box 1904 Leadville, CO 80461 (719) 486-3238 (719) 486-3238 (Fax) Counties served: Eagle, Lake

Northwest CO Legal Services

Sherri Ferree, Coordinator P.O. Box 1555 Hayden, CO 81639 (970) 276-2161 (800) 521-6968 (970) 276-2185 (Fax) Counties served: Routt, Grand, Jackson, Moffat, Rio Blanco

Northwest CO Legal Services

Patricia Craig, Director
P.O. Box 2694
Frisco, CO 80443
(970) 668-9612
(800) 521-6968
(970) 668-9642 (Fax)
Counties served: Clear Creek,
Pitkin, Summit

Northwest CO Legal Services

Candace Sparks, Coordinator P.O. Box 963 Gunnison, CO 81230 (970) 641-3023 (800) 521-6968 (970) 641-3023 (Fax) County served: Gunnison

Office of Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division, Consumer Specialist 1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-5189

The enforcement of appropriate consumer protection laws to prevent the use of widespread deception and misrepresentation in connection with the advertisement and sale of goods and services in Colorado. In appropriate circumstances, the Consumer Protection Division also will prosecute cases of willful fraud under pertinent criminal statutes.

Other services include consumer complaint mediation, consumer education and public information. Fee: none. (800) 222-4444 (instate); (800) 500-1107 (out-of-state)

Office of Fair Housing & Equal Opportunity

John E. Eubanks, Director 633 17th Street, 13th Floor Denver, CO 80202 (303) 672-5437 (303) 672-5026 (Fax) www.ezrc.hud.gov/local/shared/ working/localpro/viifheo.cfm? state=co

Enforces fair housing laws, complaints, and investigations. Individuals with housing discrimination complaints should ask for Intake Analyst Shirley Haley at extension 1389.

Otero County Child Support Enforcement Unit

215 Raton P.O. Box 494 La Junta, CO 81050 (719) 383-3100 (719) 383-3102 (Fax) jim.stroud@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is

seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Ouray County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 N. Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Montrose County Department of Social Services.

Park County Child Support Enforcement Unit

641 West 3rd Street
P.O. Box 1007
Salida, CO 81201
(719) 539-6627
(719) 539-6430 (Fax)
http://www.chaffee-county.com/
sozanne.dennis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Chaffee County Department of Social Services.

Phillips County Child Support Enforcement Unit

127 East Denver, Suite A Holyoke, CO 80734 (970) 854-2280 (970) 854-3637 (Fax) okconde@hotmail.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time

application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Pitkin County Child Support Enforcement Unit

108 8th Street, Suite 300 P.O. Box 580 Glenwood Springs, CO 81602 (970) 945-9191 (970) 928-0465 (Fax) joy.davis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Garfield County Department of Social Services.

Pro Se Resource Center

Cindy Epstein, Denver City and County Building, 1437 Bannock, Room 280A Denver, CO 80202 (720) 865-8440

Provides pro se (do it yourself) packets of forms, help, and information (not legal assistance). None.

Project Safeguard

Victim Advocate 815 E. 22nd Avenue Denver, CO 80205-5104 (303) 863-7416

Provides legal advocacy services, NOT legal advice or representation. Also provides crisis intervention, and assistance for women who are victims of domestic violence. Volunteer legal advocates, NOT attorneys, are available at Adams, Arapahoe, and Broomfield courts to help women understand the forms for temporary and permanent restraining orders. These legal advocates will also accompany women who are victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. However, the advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. In addition, Project Safeguard offers a Divorce and Custody Clinic every Tuesday. Volunteer attorneys will be on staff to give information and answer questions. The Clinic is free. Call (303) 863-7416 to sign up. Provides assistance to women who are preparing for temporary or permanent restraining orders. Provides attorney-supervised dissolution of marriage and custody clinics, one night per week, by appointment only. Interested parties should call the Denver office. Free. Arapahoe County Office (Aurora): (303) 344-9016; Brighton Office: (303) 637-7761; Denver Dept. of Human Services Safeguard Office: (720) 944-1381.

Prowers County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1001 South Main
P.O. Box 1157
Lamar, CO 81052
(719) 336-7486
(719) 336-7198 (Fax)
eosbment@prowerscounty.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Baca County.

Pueblo County Child Support Enforcement Unit

212 West 12th Street
Pueblo, CO 81003
(719) 583-6160
(719) 583-6946 (Fax)
http://www.co.pueblo.co.us/index2.htm
cherry.milosnic@dss.co.pueblo.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement.

Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Rio Blanco County Child Support Enforcement Unit

345 Market Street
P.O. Box 688
Meeker, CO 81641
(970) 878-5011
(970) 878-4999 (Fax)
http://www.co.rio-branco.co.us
andrea.harmon@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Rio Grande County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1015 6th Street P.O. Box 40 Del Norte, CO 81132 (719) 657-3381 (719) 657-4013 (Fax) james.berg@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing

and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Mineral County.

Rocky Mountain Children's Law Center

1325 S. Colorado Blvd., Suite 308 Denver, CO 80222 (303) 692-1165 (303) 302-2890 (Fax)

Provides legal representation for children, primarily abused and neglected children, in dependency and neglect cases in Juvenile Court. Fee: None to represent children; sliding scale for adults.

Routt County Child Support Enforcement Unit

136 6th Street P.O. Box 772790 Steamboat Springs, CO 80477 (970) 870-5256 (970) 870-5260 (Fax) http://www.co.routt.co.us scamilletti@co.routt.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Safehouse Denver, Inc.

Kim Cini, Shelter Director, Mollie Hill, Outreach Director 1649 Downing Street Denver, CO 80218 (303) 318-9959

Community program providing one-to-one individual advocacy and support groups for women and children who are victims of domestic violence. Shelter available for women and children in domestic violence situations. Specialized services for lesbian and bisexual women. Women and children who are receiving services from Safehouse Denver relating to domestic violence will be provided with information about community resources available to them, and victim advocates may provide GENERAL information about the legal process. Victim advocates will accompany victims to court to provide emotional support. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Shelter phone number: (303) 830-2660; 24-hour crisis line: (303) 318-9989.

Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence

(formerly Boulder County Safehouse) Lisa Calderon, Director of Advocacy Services 835 North Street Boulder, CO 80304 (303) 449-8623

The Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence provides legal advocacy and information, NOT legal advice, to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. The clinic hosts a legal information clinic on Tuesday evenings from 6:00 - 8:00 p.m. at the outreach center at 835 North Street. Volunteers will be on staff to answer general questions about legal options and forms. In addition, the Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence offers a Protective Order Clinic at the Justice Center at the corner of 6th and Canyon in Boulder from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Victim Advocates are available to provide emotional support and accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Fee: Legal Information Clinic on Tuesday evenings is free. Court advocacy services are free. Counseling services also available on a sliding scale. Crisis Line: (303) 444-2424.

Saguache County Child Support Enforcement Unit

605 Christy Avenue
P.O. Box 215
Saguache, CO 81149
(719) 655-2537
(719) 655-0206 (Fax)
jeannie.norris@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also

provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

San Juan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1060 East Second Avenue Durango, CO 81301 (970) 382-6144 (970) 385-5269 (Fax) http://co.laplata.co.us/ humansvces.htm

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served

by La Plata County Department of Social Services.

San Luis Valley Bar Association Pro Bono Project

Sue Corning, Coordinator
P.O. Box 22
Alamosa, CO 81101
(719) 589-5532
(719) 589-5532 (Fax)
Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos,
Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande,
Saguache

San Miguel County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 North Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Montrose County Department of Social Services.

Sedgwick County Child Support Enforcement Unit

118 West 3rd Street P.O. Box 27 Julesburg, CO 80737 (970) 474-3397 (970) 474-9881 (Fax)

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Seniors' Resource Center

3227 Chase Street Denver, CO 80212 (303) 238-8151

Seniors' Resource Center services include: door-to-door transportation, adult day care, social work (assessment, case management, information, and referral), legal referral services, volunteer opportunities, employment and in-home program. Fees vary according to program. Legal referrals only.

Smith & Jolly, LLC.

12471 Clermont Street

Denver, CO 80241 (303) 947-1366 (303) 379-7495 (Fax) http://www.sjndnlaw.com

Indian law firm.

Southern Colorado Bar Association Pro Bono Project

Sisto Mazza, Volunteer Coordinator 314 Main Street Trinidad, CO 81082 (719) 846-3334 (719) 846-6941 (Fax) Counties served: Las Animas, Huerfano

Southwest Bar Volunteer Legal Aid

Patt Emmett, Coordinator 1474 Main Avenue #200 Durango, CO 81301 (970) 247-0266 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) Counties served: Archuleta, La Plata, San Juan

Summit County Child Support Enforcement Unit

37 County Road 1005 P.O. Box 869 Frisco, CO 80443 (970) 668-4100 (970) 668-4115 (Fax) sueg@co.summit.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families

when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Teller County Child Support Enforcement Unit

18401 East Hwy 24, Suite 214
P.O. Box 6688
Woodland Park, CO 80866
(719) 686-8639
(866) 280-3720
(719) 686-9127 (Fax)
http://www.co-childsupport.com/teller

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

The Colorado and Denver Bar Association

Volunteer Court Mediation Project

Patrick Kenney, VCMP Executive Director, CBA Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee 1900 Grant Street, Ninth Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 757-5000 kenneylaw@aol.com

The Volunteer Court Mediation Project provides mediation services to parties in civil lawsuits in Denver's Small Claims Courts and County Courts. Trained and experienced volunteer mediators provide services at no cost, at the courthouse, on the day of a scheduled trial or hearing in the case. No fee, but dispute must be in Small Claims Court or County Court, and must be for less than \$15,000.

The Colorado Anti-Violence Program

Denise de Percin, Director P.O. Box 181085 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 839-5204 (303) 839-5205 (Fax)

The Anti-Violence Program maintains a database of attorneys for referral for legal services. Provides court accompaniment for gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender victims of domestic violence and/or hate crimes. Helps clients understand the restraining order process and accompany them to court for emotional support if they choose to seek a temporary or permanent restraining order against an abusive partner. The Colorado Anti-Violence Program does NOT have an attorney on staff, and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Free.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities

455 Sherman Street, Suite 130 Denver, CO 80203-4403 (303) 772-0300

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally-funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse or neglect as well as addressing complaints of residents of nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Sliding scale based on income. TDD for hearing impaired: (800) 288-1376.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People

322 North 8th Street Grand Junction, CO 81501-1501 (970) 241-6371 (800) 531-2105

The Legal Center is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse and neglect. The Center also addresses complaints of residents in nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Fee: Sliding scale based on income.

U.S. Commission on Civil Rights

John F. Dulles II, Regional Director 1700 Broadway, Suite 710 Denver, CO 80290 (303) 866-1040 (303) 866-1050 (Fax) www.usccr.gov

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Reg. 8

Conally Mears, Director of Tribal Assistance Program 999 18th Street, Suite 500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 312-6930 (303) 612-6044 (Fax)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Reg. 8

Sadie Hoskie, Director of Office of Pollution Prevention, Pesticides and Toxics 999 18th Street, Suite 500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 312-6390 (303) 312-6044 (Fax)

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

303 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 510 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-1300

The agency receives and investigates allegations of employment discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age and disability. It provides advice and technical assistance to attorneys representing plaintiffs in federal litigation under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal Pay Act, Title I of the Americans with

Disabilities Act and sections of the Civil Rights Act of 1991. This agency also enforces the various laws by filing direct suits or intervening in existing lawsuits. Fee: None

Uncompangre Volunteer Legal Aid

Patty Bennett, Coordinator 307 Main #2 Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 249-7202 Counties served: Delta, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, San Miguel

University of Colorado Legal Aid and Defender Program

Campus Box 404, Fleming Law Building Boulder, CO 80309-4404 (303) 492-8126 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

Represents indigent clients who live in Boulder County or who must appear in Boulder County courts on misdemeanor, criminal, and traffic charges. Also represents indigent clients in most civil cases (excluding workers' compensation, bankruptcy, and child custody). Open for new clients during the spring and fall semesters only. Fee: \$15 one time charge. By appointment only, September - October and January – February.

Victim Assistance Unit, Denver Police Department

Zoe Livingston-Poole, 1331 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204 (720) 913-6035

Victim Assistance Unit provides onscene crisis intervention services. The Victim Assistance Unit provides victims of crime with advocacy and referrals, and gives victims GENERAL information about what to do if you have been the victim of a crime. The Victim Assistance Unit does NOT provide legal advice or representation, but can provide information about the legal process. Free.

VPI-Women's Crisis Center

Jennifer Walker, Executive Director P.O. Box 367 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (303) 688-1094

VPI provides assistance to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. There is no attorney on staff, but court advocates are available to accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. These advocates CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. There is also a paralegal on staff who can help victims understand the paperwork for Protective Orders. In addition to legal advocacy, the Women's Crisis Center provides employment assistance, peer support, information and referrals, shelter, women's and children's therapy, and S.T.E.P. parenting classes. 24hour crisis line: (303) 688-8484.

Wagenlander and Heisterkamp

1700 Broadway St. Suite 1202 Denver, CO 80290-1201 (303) 832-6511 wagenlan@wagenlander.com

Indian law firm.

Washington County Child Support Enforcement Unit

5 East 1st Street P.O. Box 395 Akron, CO 80720 (970) 345-2238 (970) 345-2237 (Fax) jean.glosson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Weld County Child Support Enforcement Unit

315 North 11th Avenue P.O. Box A Greeley, CO 80632 (970) 352-6933 (970) 346-7691 (Fax) http://www.co.weld.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in

both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Weld County Legal Services

Sandy Carr, Coordinator P.O. Box 1283 Greeley, CO 80632 (970) 351-7300 (970) 336-7245 (Fax) County served: Weld

Whiteing and Smith

1136 Pearl Street Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 444-2549

Indian law firm.

Yuma County Child Support Enforcement Unit

340 South Birch Wray, CO 80758 (970) 332-4877 (970) 332-4978 (Fax) phyllis.williams@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or

privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

LISTING BY SERVICE

Alternative Dispute Resolution

Adams County Justice Center

Karen Gee, District Administrator 1100 Judicial Center Drive Brighton, CO 80601 (303) 659-1161 www.17thjudicialdistrict.com (legal forms)

The Adams County Justice Center provides free legal forms on their website at www.17thjudicialdistrict.com. There is also a Self-Help Center at the Justice Center that offers forms and

brochures with information relating to processing cases without an attorney, including how to pursue non-adversarial alternatives for resolving or avoiding litigation. Forms accessed from the Online Self-Help Center are free. Forms are also available for a fee at the Justice Center. Fees vary according to the type of form. The Self-Help Center has forms and information relating to the following types of cases: Dissolution of Marriage (Divorce); Allocation of Parental Responsibilities (Custody); Guardianships; Name Changes; County Court Traffic, Misdemeanor and Civil Cases; Small Claims; and

Restraining Orders. See the Online Help-Center for additional information.

American Arbitration Association

1675 Broadway, Suite 2250 Denver, CO 80220-4602 (303) 831-0823 (877) 631-0823 (303) 832-3626 (Fax)

Nationwide provider of mediation, arbitration, and education/training. Services offered: arbitration, mediation/arbitration, settlement conferences, fact finding, mini-trials, and education and training.

Arts Mediation Service (AMS) of Colorado Lawyers for the Arts (CoLA)

Michelle Conkin, Esq., AMS and Legal Coordinator P.O. Box 48148 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 722-7994 (303) 778-6956 (Fax) cola@artstozoo.org

CoLA has joined a national network of volunteer lawyers for the arts organizations who are initiating mediation services for the arts community. AMS offers mediation to artists, non-profit arts organizations and arts businesses that need assistance in resolving or preventing disputes. Fee: Sliding scale per mediation session. Individual household: \$60,000 maximum income; Organization or business: \$150,000 maximum budget.

Better Business Bureau

1920 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204-4039 (303) 758-8200

The BBB provides low-cost mediation for disputes between consumers and businesses. The BBB cannot provide legal advice, but will refer consumers to appropriate government agencies for legal information.

CDR Associates (formerly the Center for Dispute Resolution)

100 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 120 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 442-7367 www.mediate.org

CDR Associates is a non-profit organization that provides facilitation/mediation, training, and consultation in conflict resolution, decision-making assistance, and dispute resolution. Fee: Varies.

The Colorado and Denver Bar Association Volunteer Court Mediation Project

Patrick Kenney, VCMP Executive Director, CBA Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee 1900 Grant Street, Ninth Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 757-5000 kenneylaw@aol.com

The Volunteer Court Mediation Project provides mediation services to parties in civil lawsuits in Denver's Small Claims Courts and County Courts. Trained and experienced volunteer mediators provide services at no cost, at the courthouse, on the day of a scheduled trial or hearing in the case. No fee, but dispute must be in Small Claims Court or County Court, and must be for less than \$15,000.

Colorado Department of Labor & Employment

Labor Standards Unit 1515 Arapahoe Street, Tower 2, #375 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 318-8441 (303) 318-8400 (Fax) www.state.co.us

Administers state labor laws regarding wage claims, child labor laws, minimum wage, and labor relations. Fee: None.

Neighborhood Justice Center, Office of the District Attorney

Jerry O'Mare, Program Manager 105 E. Vermijo Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 520-6016

The Neighborhood Justice Center, a division of the Fourth Judicial District Attorney's Office, was created to help citizens peacefully resolve disputes through mediation. It is designed to help reduce the caseloads of the courts and to provide immediate help for those who experience personal as well as interpersonal conflict. To achieve these ends, the Center provides mediators who strive to assist people in finding meaningful solutions to conflict. Disputes of minor civil or criminal misdemeanors are handled. Fee: None.

Arts

Arts Mediation Service (AMS) of Colorado Lawyers for the Arts (CoLA)

Michelle Conkin, Esq., AMS and Legal Coordinator P.O. Box 48148 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 722-7994 (303) 778-6956 (Fax) cola@artstozoo.org

CoLA has joined a national network of volunteer lawyers for the arts organizations who are initiating mediation services for the arts community. AMS offers mediation to artists, non-profit arts organizations and arts businesses that need assistance in resolving or preventing disputes. Fee: Sliding scale per mediation session. Individual household: \$60,000 maximum income; Organization or business: \$150,000 maximum budget.

Consumer Issues

Better Business Bureau

1920 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204-4039 (303) 758-8200

The BBB provides low-cost mediation for disputes between consumers and businesses. The BBB cannot provide legal advice, but will refer consumers to appropriate government agencies for legal information.

Colorado Attorney General Antitrust Unit

1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-3613 (303) 866-5691 (Fax)

Enforcement of antitrust laws through criminal prosecution and civil lawsuits under state antitrust and unfair practices, laws and civil litigation under federal antitrust laws. No fee.

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203

(303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493- 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817(970) 243-7814 (Fax)www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Bankruptcy Clinics

U.S. Bankruptcy Court, U.S. Courts Custom House Building 721 19th Street, Room 125 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association presents FREE informational clinics on bankruptcy for debtors. These clinics are designed for the pro se (do-it-yourself) litigant. They are intended to provide an OVERVIEW only. They will assist attendees in understanding the bankruptcy process and forms. Topics reviewed will include how bankruptcy can eliminate debts, the difference between Chapter 7 and Chapter 13, the effect on credit ratings and which forms are required for filing. Issues of creditor harassment, what a collection agency cannot say to you and how to fight back if you are harassed will also be addressed. The clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Volunteer attorneys cannot answer specific or detailed questions concerning unique individual circumstances, provide specific legal advice for individuals, or provide individual representation. Free. Clinics are held the 2nd Tuesday of each month from 1:30 - 3:00 p.m. For more information, call Carolyn Ferber or Kari Brandt at the Denver Bar Association at (303) 860-1115.

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Small Claims and Collections Clinics

Denver County Court, Civil Division, 4th Floor 1515 Cleveland Place Denver, CO 80202 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association sponsors these FREE informational clinics to teach people how to file their own small claims cases in court, and how to collect on the judgments. Tips include gathering information, forms (where to get them and how to complete them), filing (how and where), defending your position (what to do and not do), and court procedure. Collection clinics provide tips on how to collect your judgment. General questions are welcome but the clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Small Claims clinics are held on the 3rd Tuesday of each month. Collections Clinics are held on the 3rd Thursday of each month.

Denver Dist. Atty's Office - Econ. Crime Unit

Phillip A. Parrott, Chief Deputy D.A., Lisa Curtis, Director of Consumer Services 201 West Colfax Avenue, Dept. 801 Denver, CO 80202 (720) 913-9179

Investigates and files criminal cases violating Title 18 statutes (theft, forgery, computer crime), the Colorado Securities Act, and the Colorado Consumer Protection Act, where Denver is the place of business or consumer/victim's residence. Special focus on financial exploitation of adults at risk. Referrals and self-help materials provided. Fee: None. Fraud Hotline Intake: (720) 913-9015; Administration: (720) 913-9182 (Hearing Impaired).

Federal Trade Commission

Consumer Response Center 600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Room H-130 Washington, DC 20580 (877) 382-4357 (202) 326-2012 (Fax) www.ftc.gov

The mission of the Federal Trade Commission is to protect consumers from unfair and deceptive trade practices and to keep the market free fair and free for competition in the marketplace. The FTC administers the Federal Trade Commission Act and a number of trade regulation rules and special statutes such as the Consumer Credit Protection Act. The FTC cannot handle private disputes but welcomes consumer complaints that may indicate a need for action in the public interest. Identity Theft Complaints: (877) 438-4338.

Housing For All, Metro Denver Fair Housing Center

1600 Downing Street, Suite 650 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 296-6949

As a private, non-profit organization, HFA serves the community by advocating on behalf of victims of unlawful housing discrimination. HFA provides intake and assessment of fair housing complaints for referral to HUD, the Colorado Civil Rights Division, and/or private attorneys. Services offered also include fair housing training for landlords, apartment associations, realtors, community service agencies, and the general public. See HFA's publication, Fair Housing Guide: Fair Housing Today for a Better Tomorrow, which details the specifications of the Federal Fair Housing Act and lists resources for assistance to housing discrimination victims.

Metro Volunteer Lawyers

Sally Maresh, Director

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor, #400 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-8210 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.denbar.org/mvl/metrovl

Volunteer attorneys provide representation to INDIGENT clients in certain types of civil cases including family law, bankruptcy, insurance, wills and guardianship. POTENTIAL CLIENTS MUST FIRST CONTACT COLORADO LEGAL SERVICES at (303) 837-1313 for a telephone interview before contacting Metro Volunteer Lawyers. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Adams, Arapahoe, Denver, Douglas, Elbert, Jefferson.

Office of Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division, Consumer Specialist 1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-5189

The enforcement of appropriate consumer protection laws to prevent the use of widespread deception and misrepresentation in connection with the advertisement and sale of goods and services in Colorado. In appropriate circumstances, the Consumer Protection Division also will prosecute cases of willful fraud under pertinent criminal statutes. Other services include consumer complaint mediation, consumer education and public information. Fee: none. (800) 222-4444 (instate); (800) 500-1107 (out-of-state).

Criminal

Colorado State Public Defender, Regional Trial Office

Charles F. Garcia 110 16th Street, Suite 1300 Denver, CO 80202-5215 (303) 620-4999

Court appointed lawyers to represent indigent people charged with crimes. The Colorado Public Defender does NOT handle civil work, no divorce, no landlord/tenant case or auto accidents (unless crime related). Fee: None.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender (main)

110 16th Street, Suite 800 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 620-4888 (303) 620-4931 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Alamosa Regional Office

420 San Juan Avenue Alamosa, CO 81101 (719) 589-9615 (719) 589-6178 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html alamosa.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, Saguache.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Arapahoe County

7208 South Tucson Way #201 Englewood, CO 80112 (303) 799-9001 (303) 792-0822 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html arapahoe.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Arapahoe.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Boulder Regional Office

2501 Walnut Street, Suite 100 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 444-2322 (303) 449-6432 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html boulder.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Boulder.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Brighton Regional Office

4710 East Bromley Lane Brighton, CO 80601 (303) 659-4274 (303) 659-6935 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html brighton.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Adams, Broomfield.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Colorado Springs Regional Office

415 South Sahwatch Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 475-1235 (719) 475-1476 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html cosprings.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: El Paso, Teller.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Denver Regional Office

110 16th Street, Suite 1300 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 620-4999 (303) 620-4987 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html denver.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: City and County of Denver.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Douglas Regional Office

611 East Wilcox, Unit E
Castle Rock, CO 80104
(303) 688-3081
(303) 688-9682 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
douglas.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Douglas, Elbert, Lincoln.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Durango Regional Office

1047 Main Avenue, #139 Durango, CO 81301 (970) 247-9284 (970) 259-6497 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html durango.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Fort Collins Regional Office

1 Old Town Square, #210 Fort Collins, CO 80524 (970) 493-1212 (970) 498-8867 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html ftcollins.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties represented: Larimer.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Glenwood Springs Regional Office

311-1/2 8th Street Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 (970) 945-5828 (970) 945-8476 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html glenwood.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for

eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Garfield, Pitkin, Rio Blanco.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Golden Regional Office

17700 S. Golden Road, #220 Golden, CO 80401 (303) 279-7841 (303) 279-3082 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html golden.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Gilpin, Jefferson.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Grand Junction Regional Office

105 West Main Street, Suite A Grand Junction, CO 81501 (970) 245-9122 (970) 245-1170 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html grandjunction.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Mesa.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Greeley Regional Office

822 7th St., Suite 250 Greeley, CO 80631 (970) 353-8224 (970) 352-8293 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html greeley.defenders@state.co.us Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Kit Carson, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Weld, Yuma.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, La Junta Regional Office

402 Santa Fe Avenue, Suite 105 La Junta, CO 81050 (719) 384-5448 (719) 384-5762 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Baca, Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Otero, Prowers.

lajunta.defenders@state.co.us

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Montrose Regional Office

9 South Townsend Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 249-4791 (970) 249-5318 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html montrose.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, San Miguel.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Pueblo Regional Office

132 West B Street, #200 Pueblo, CO 81003 (719) 546-0004 (719) 583-0746 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
pueblo.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Pueblo, Custer, Fremont.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Salida Regional Office

132 F Street
Salida, CO 81201
(719) 539-3521
(719) 539-4597 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
salida.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Chaffee, Fremont, Park.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Silverthorne Regional Office

221 Summit Place, Suite 252
P.O. Box 1636
Silverthorne, CO 80498
(970) 468-9363
(970) 468-9389
(970) 468-9214 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
silverthorne.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Clear Creek, Eagle, Lake, Summit.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Steamboat Springs

Regional Office

620 Oak Street
P.O. Box 773539
Steamboat Springs, CO 80477
(970) 879-0645
(970) 879-7231 (Fax)
http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html
steamboat.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Grand, Moffat, Routt, Jackson.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Sterling Regional Office

208 H & B Building, 118 Main Street Sterling, CO 80751 (970) 522-5032 (970) 522-7570 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html sterling.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Kit Carson, Logan, Morgan, Phillips, Sedgwick, Washington, Yuma.

Colorado Office of the State Public Defender, Trinidad Regional Office

134 West Main Street, #32 Trinidad, CO 81082 (719) 846-9278 (719) 846-2089 (Fax) http://www.state.co.us/defenders/index.html trinidad.defenders@state.co.us

Provides legal representation for eligible persons in criminal cases. \$25 application fee. Counties served: Huerfano, Las Animas.

Denver Dist. Atty's Office - Econ. Crime Unit

Phillip A. Parrott, Chief Deputy D.A., Lisa Curtis, Director of Consumer Services 201 West Colfax Avenue, Dept. 801 Denver, CO 80202 (720) 913-9179

Investigates and files criminal cases violating Title 18 statutes (theft, forgery, computer crime), the Colorado Securities Act, and the Colorado Consumer Protection Act, where Denver is the place of business or consumer/victim's residence. Special focus on financial exploitation of adults at risk. Referrals and self-help materials provided. Fee: None. Fraud Hotline Intake: (720) 913-9015; Administration: (720) 913-9182 (Hearing Impaired).

Office of Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division, Consumer Specialist 1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-5189

The enforcement of appropriate consumer protection laws to prevent the use of widespread deception and misrepresentation in connection with the advertisement and sale of goods and services in Colorado. In appropriate circumstances, the Consumer Protection Division also will prosecute cases of willful fraud under pertinent criminal statutes. Other services include consumer complaint mediation, consumer education and public information. Fee: none. (800) 222-4444 (instate); (800) 500-1107 (out-of-state).

University of Colorado Legal Aid and Defender Program

Campus Box 404, Fleming Law Building Boulder, CO 80309-4404 (303) 492-8126 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

Represents indigent clients who live in Boulder County or who must appear in Boulder County courts on misdemeanor, criminal, and traffic charges. Also represents indigent clients in most civil cases (excluding workers' compensation, bankruptcy, and child custody). Open for new clients during the spring and fall semesters only. Fee: \$15 one time charge. By appointment only, September - October and January – February.

Discrimination

American Civil Liberties Union

Mark Silverstein, Legal Director; Sue Armstrong, Executive Director; Dipak Patel, Intake Director 400 Corona Street Denver, CO 80218-3915 (303) 777-5482 (303) 777-1773 (Fax) www.aclu-co.org; http:// freedomnet.org/aclu.html msilver2@worldnet.att.net; sarmstrong@aclu-co.org; dpatel@aclu-co.org

The ACLU is a private, non-profit, pro bono provider that defends and protects the constitutional rights of all Americans. It provides legal counsel, works on legislation, and runs an educational program. If your constitutional rights have been violated, the intake officer will ask you to write a letter describing the situation. Your letter will be reviewed by the staff and a panel of

attorneys. If the ACLU accepts your case, it will proceed on your behalf for free. Fee: None.

Colorado Civil Rights Division

Wendell L. Pryor, Director 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050 Denver, CO 80202-5143 (303) 894-2997 (303) 894-7830 (Fax) www.dora.state.co.us/Civil-Rights

The Colorado Civil Rights Division administers and enforces Colorado's civil rights laws in employment, housing, and public accommodations. The Colorado Revised Statutes (1988) prohibit discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations based on race, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, creed, color, marital status (housing and public accommodations), and familial status (housing only). Discrimination in employment based on age or marriage to a coworker is also prohibited. The CCRD implements the civil rights statutes through administrative enforcement (compliance) and outreach (research and education). Most services are free. There is a \$5 fee for copies of laws, rules, and regulations.

Colorado Legal Initiatives Project

Michael Brewer, Legal Director P.O. 300397 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 282-5602

A non-profit law office specializing in cases concerning discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity, or HIV status.

Housing For All, Metro Denver Fair Housing

Center

1600 Downing Street, Suite 650 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 296-6949

As a private, non-profit organization, HFA serves the community by advocating on behalf of victims of unlawful housing discrimination. HFA provides intake and assessment of fair housing complaints for referral to HUD, the Colorado Civil Rights Division, and/or private attorneys. Services offered also include fair housing training for landlords, apartment associations, realtors, community service agencies, and the general public. See HFA's publication, Fair Housing Guide: Fair Housing Today for a Better Tomorrow, which details the specifications of the Federal Fair Housing Act and lists resources for assistance to housing discrimination victims.

Indian Law Clinic, Univ. of CO at Boulder

Jill Tompkins, Executive Director Campus Box 404 Boulder, CO 80309 (303) 492-0966 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

The Indian Law Clinic represents Indian people and groups or tribes with unique Federal Indian Law issues. The clinic serves Denver and Boulder-area Native Americans. The Clinic works on issues such as the Indian Child Welfare Act, denial of health or education benefits, and employment discrimination cases.

Office of Fair Housing & Equal Opportunity

John E. Eubanks, Director 633 17th Street, 13th Floor Denver, CO 80202 (303) 672-5437 (303) 672-5026 (Fax) www.ezrc.hud.gov/local/shared/ working/localpro/viifheo.cfm? state=co

Enforces fair housing laws, complaints, and investigations. Individuals with housing discrimination complaints should ask for Intake Analyst Shirley Haley at extension 1389.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities

455 Sherman Street, Suite 130 Denver, CO 80203-4403 (303) 772-0300

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally-funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse or neglect as well as addressing complaints of residents of nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Sliding scale based on income. TDD for hearing impaired: (800) 288-1376.

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

303 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 510 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-1300

The agency receives and investigates allegations of employment discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age and disability. It provides advice and technical assistance to attorneys

representing plaintiffs in federal litigation under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal Pay Act, Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act and sections of the Civil Rights Act of 1991. This agency also enforces the various laws by filing direct suits or intervening in existing lawsuits. Fee: None

Elderly

AARP

Jon Looney, State Director 1301 Pennsylvania Street, Suite 200 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 830-2277 (303) 764-5999 (Fax) www.aarp.org

AARP is a non-profit, non-partisan membership organization for people 50 and over. AARP provides information and resources; advocates on legislative, consumer, and legal issues; assists members to serve their communities; and offers a wide range of unique benefits, special products, and services for members.

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493- 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817

(970) 243-7814 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Denver Dist. Atty's Office - Econ. Crime Unit

Phillip A. Parrott, Chief Deputy D.A., Lisa Curtis, Director of Consumer Services 201 West Colfax Avenue, Dept. 801 Denver, CO 80202 (720) 913-9179

Investigates and files criminal cases violating Title 18 statutes (theft, forgery, computer crime), the Colorado Securities Act, and the Colorado Consumer Protection Act, where Denver is the place of business or consumer/victim's residence. Special focus on financial exploitation of adults at risk. Referrals and self-help materials provided. Fee: None. Fraud Hotline Intake: (720) 913-9015; Administration: (720) 913-9182 (Hearing Impaired).

First Judicial District Bar Assoc. LAP

Clifford O. Stone, Jr., Esq., Executive Director P.O. Box 2311 Littleton, CO 80161-2311 (303) 216-0851 (303) 721-9532 (Fax)

The First Judicial District Bar Association Legal Assistance Program (LAP) provides free and low-cost legal information, advice, and representation to senior citizens 55-years of age and older residing ONLY in Jefferson and Gilpin counties. Prospective clients should call the LAP phone number and make an appointment. Free and low-cost legal information, advice and representation. Must be 55-years of age and older, and must reside in Jefferson or Gilpin County.

Grandparents Resource Center

P.O. Box 27064 Denver, CO 80227 (303) 980-5707 (810) 885-8281 (Fax)

Provides counseling and advocacy to grandparents/parents without custody who seek custody or visitation with grandchildren/children. Attorney on staff to answer legal questions on a sliding scale fee basis. Free legal referrals. Fee: Sliding scale. Free legal referrals.

Seniors' Resource Center

3227 Chase Street Denver, CO 80212 (303) 238-8151

Seniors' Resource Center services include: door-to-door transportation, adult day care, social work (assessment, case management, information, and referral), legal referral services, volunteer opportunities, employment and in-home program. Fees vary according to program. Legal referrals only.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities

455 Sherman Street, Suite 130 Denver, CO 80203-4403 (303) 772-0300

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally-funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse or neglect as well as addressing complaints of residents of nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Sliding scale based on income. TDD for hearing impaired: (800) 288-1376.

Employment

Colorado Civil Rights Division

Wendell L. Pryor, Director

1560 Broadway, Suite 1050 Denver, CO 80202-5143 (303) 894-2997 (303) 894-7830 (Fax) www.dora.state.co.us/Civil-Rights

The Colorado Civil Rights Division administers and enforces Colorado's civil rights laws in employment, housing, and public accommodations. The Colorado Revised Statutes (1988) prohibit discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations based on race, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, creed, color, marital status (housing and public accommodations), and familial status (housing only). Discrimination in employment based on age or marriage to a coworker is also prohibited. The CCRD implements the civil rights statutes through administrative enforcement (compliance) and outreach (research and education). Most services are free. There is a \$5 fee for copies of laws, rules, and regulations.

Colorado Department of Labor & Employment

Labor Standards Unit 1515 Arapahoe Street, Tower 2, #375 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 318-8441 (303) 318-8400 (Fax) www.state.co.us

Administers state labor laws regarding wage claims, child labor laws, minimum wage, and labor relations. Fee: None.

Colorado Department of Labor & Employment

Division of Workers'
Compensation, Customer Service
1515 Arapahoe Street
Denver, CO 80202-2117
(303) 318-8700

www.state.co.us

Administers state laws regarding workers' compensation. Can assist employers and employees regarding claims for benefits for on-the-job injuries. Provides alternative dispute programs for workers' compensation claims. Fee: None.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington

Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

303 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 510 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 866-1300

The agency receives and investigates allegations of employment discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age and disability. It provides advice and technical assistance to attorneys representing plaintiffs in federal litigation under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal Pay

Act, Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act and sections of the Civil Rights Act of 1991. This agency also enforces the various laws by filing direct suits or intervening in existing lawsuits. Fee: None

Family

Adams County Child Support Enforcement Unit

7190 Colorado Boulevard Commerce City, CO 80022 (303) 227-2233 http://www.co.adams.co.us donn.costanzo@dss.co.adams.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Adams County Justice Center

Karen Gee, District Administrator 1100 Judicial Center Drive Brighton, CO 80601 (303) 659-1161 www.17thjudicialdistrict.com (legal forms) The Adams County Justice Center provides free legal forms on their website at www.17thjudicialdistrict.com. There is also a Self-Help Center at the Justice Center that offers forms and brochures with information relating to processing cases without an attorney, including how to pursue non-adversarial alternatives for resolving or avoiding litigation. Forms accessed from the Online Self-Help Center are free. Forms are also available for a fee at the Justice Center. Fees vary according to the type of form. The Self-Help Center has forms and information relating to the following types of cases: Dissolution of Marriage (Divorce); Allocation of Parental Responsibilities (Custody); Guardianships; Name Changes; County Court Traffic, Misdemeanor and Civil Cases; Small Claims; and Restraining Orders. See the Online Help-Center for additional information.

Alamosa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

610 State Street P.O. Box 1310 Alamosa, CO 81101 (719) 589-2581 (719) 589-9794 (Fax) lhenders@fone.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the

interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Arapahoe County Child Support Enforcement Unit

7305 S. Potomac Street, Suite 100 Centennial, CO 80112-4031 (303) 874-8700 (303) 874-8631 (Fax) childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Archuleta County Child Support Enforcement Unit

449 San Juan P.O. Box 240 Pagosa Springs, CO 81147 (970) 264-2184 (970) 264-2186 (Fax) erlinda.gonzalez@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Baca County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1001 South Main
P.O. Box 1157
Lamar, CO 81502
(719) 336-7486
eosbment@prowerscounty.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Prowers County Department of

Social Services.

Bent County Child Support Enforcement Unit

215 Second Street
P.O. Box 326
Las Animas, CO 81054
(719) 456-2620
(719) 456-2945 (Fax)
thomas.hobbs@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Boulder County Child Support Enforcement Unit

529 Coffman, Suite 100A Longmont, CO 80501 (303) 678-6300 (303) 678-6309 (Fax) http://www.co.boulder.co.us./ social/socialsv.html dsmith@co.boulder.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Boulder County Dept. of Social Services

Child Support Enforcement Unit 529 Coffman, Suite 100-A Longmont, CO 80501 (303) 678-6300

Provides child support enforcement services for Boulder county residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20.

Brighton/Commerce City Child Support Units

7190 Colorado Blvd, 6th Floor Commerce City, CO 81022 (303) 227-2233

Provides child support enforcement services for Adams County residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20

Broomfield County Child Support Enforcement Unit

6 Garden Center Broomfield, CO 80020 (720) 887-2261 (720) 294-9677 (Fax) kbeye@ci.broomfield.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Chaffee County Child Support Enforcement Unit

641 South West Third Street
P.O. Box 1007
Salida, CO 81201
(719) 539-6627
(719) 539-6430 (Fax)
http://www.chaffee-county.com/
sozanne.dennis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do

not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Park County.

Cheyenne County Child Support Enforcement Unit

51 South First P.O. Box 146 Cheyenne Wells, CO 80810 (719) 767-5629 (719) 767-5101 (Fax) laura.escudero@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Child Support Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway, Ste.

160 Golden, CO 80401-6010 (303) 271-4300

Provides child support enforcement services for Jefferson and Gilpin County residents who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20. Cities: Golden, Lakewood, Arvada, Westminster

Clear Creek County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4090 (Fax) ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Jefferson County Department of Social Services.

Colorado Legal Services, Denver

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891

(970) 493– 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817(970) 243-7814 (Fax)www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Conejos County Child Support Enforcement Unit

12989 County Road G5 P.O. Box 68 Conejos, CO 81129 (719) 376-5455 (719) 376-2389 (Fax) ricardo.expinoza@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Costilla County Child Support Enforcement Unit

123 Gaspar Street
P.O. Box 249
San Luis, CO 81152
(719) 672-4131
(719) 672-4141 (Fax)
alfredo.chavez@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Crowley County Child Support Enforcement Unit

631 Main Street, Suite 101 P.O. Box 186 Ordway, CO 81063 (719) 267-3456 (719) 267-9959 (Fax) robert.keenan@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Custer County Child Support Enforcement Unit

205 South Sixth Street, Courthouse P.O. Box 929 Westcliffe, CO 81252 (719) 783-2371 (719) 783-9085 (Fax) laura.lockhart@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Delta County Child Support Enforcement Unit

560 Dodge Street, Courthouse Annex P.O. Box 290 Delta, CO 81416-0290 (970) 874-2063 (970) 874-2069 (Fax) leslie@deltacounty.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Denver County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 Federal Boulevard
Denver, CO 80204
(720) 944-2960
(720) 944-2660 (Fax)
http://www.denvergov.org/dephome.asp?depid=61
kathleen.Rodriguez@dhs.co.denver.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Denver County Do-It-Yourself Divorce Clinics

1437 Bannock Street
Denver, CO
(720) 865-8440
www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms);
www.denbar.org (Denver schedule)

Denver District Court Self-Help Centers, partnered with volunteer attorneys from the Denver Bar Association, offer these FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court and on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). This clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Divorce Clinics are held in Denver County the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Denver Department of Human Services

Denver City Attorney's Office 1200 Federal Blvd. Denver, CO 80204 (720) 944-2960

Provides services to non-public assistance applicants and public assistance recipients in Denver with regard to establishing paternity, establishing a child support order, and enforcing child support orders. No fee required for public assistance recipients. One-time \$20 waivable fee is required for non-public assistance applicants.

Denver Dept. of Human Services Clinic

Mayor's Office on Workforce Development 1200 Federal Boulevard, Room 1034 Denver, CO (720) 944-2594

This FREE informational clinic presents information about visitation/parenting time, contempt citation (family law matters only), child support issues, custody issues, and other family law issues. Although an attorney will be running the clinic, the clinic DOES NOT offer legal advice or representation and is only meant as an INFORMATIONAL RESOURCE about the how's and why's of going to court and getting things done right and legally. Free. Clinics will be offered the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 5:30 -7:00 p.m.

Dolores County Child Support Enforcement Unit

409 North Main, Courthouse P.O. Box 485 Dove Creek, CO 81324 (970) 677-2240 (970) 677-2859 (Fax) janet.crawford@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the

interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Douglas County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Elbert and Lincoln counties.

Eagle County Child Support Enforcement Unit

Eagle County Department of Social Services- 500 Broadway Street P.O. Box 660 Eagle, CO 81631 (970) 328-8840

(970) 328-8829 (Fax) www.eagle-county.com kathleen.lyons@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

El Paso County Child Support Enforcement Unit

30 East Pikes Peak Avenue, Suite 203 Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 457-6331 (719) 457-6340 (Fax) http://www.co-childsupport.com/

mcrago@policy-studies.com

elpaso

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or

privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Elbert County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm susan.walton1@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Douglas County Department of Social Services.

Family Support Division 18th Judicial District

District Attorney's Office, Child Support Unit 7305 S. Potomac, Suite 100 Englewood, CO 80112-4031 (303) 643-4630

Provides child support enforcement services for residents of Arapahoe, Douglas and Elbert Counties who have custody of their children but are not receiving child support to which they are entitled. Provides a full range of services in trying to collect current child support and arrearages. Fee: \$0-\$20 Cities: Englewood, Littleton, Parker, Highlands Ranch, Castle Rock.

Family Tree, Inc., Women In Crisis

Betty House, Legal Advocacy Supervisor P.O. Box 1586 Arvada, CO 80001 (303) 271-6559

Provides advocacy, safe shelter, food, clothing, an on-site health clinic, individual and group support, legal advocacy, case management, community referrals, and children's programs for victims of domestic violence. Women In Crisis also provides domestic violence prevention and community education. A family law attorney and paralegal facilitate free legal clinics the first and third Wednesday of every month, with general information about divorce, custody, separation, and restraining orders. These free clinics are held at the Family Tree building at 3805 Marshall Street in Wheat ridge. The legal clinics are meant to provide GENERAL information only, and the attorney will not provide individual legal advice or representation. In addition, victims of domestic violence can attend Restraining Order Clinics at the Jefferson County Courthouse. The Restraining Order Clinics are held twice a day, Monday through Friday, at 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. in the Victim Witness Office of the Courthouse, which is located on the first floor. The Restraining Order Clinics are hosted by victim

advocates from Family Tree, and will help victims understand the process for seeking a Temporary Restraining Order against an abuser. The victim advocates will assist victims in completing the legal forms for a Temporary Restraining Order, will accompany them through court to provide emotional support, and, once the Temporary Restraining Order is granted, will go with them to the sheriff's office to ensure that the TRO is served on the abuser. Victim advocates will also accompany victims to the Permanent Restraining Order hearing, if necessary. These victim advocates are NOT attorneys and CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. Free. 24-hour crisis line: (303) 420-6752.

Fremont County Child Support Enforcement Unit

172 Justice Center Road Canon City, CO 81212 (719) 275-2318 (719) 269-2339 (Fax) fremontcse@yahoo.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Garfield County Child Support Enforcement Unit

Garfield County Department of Social Services; 108 8th Street., Suite 300 (physical) P.O. Box 580 Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 (970) 945-9191 (970) 928-0465 (Fax) joy.davis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Pitkin County.

Gateway Battered Women's Shelter

Jeneen Klippel-Worden, Community Relations Coordinator P.O. Box 914 Aurora, CO 80040 (303) 343-1856

Provides counseling, support services, and shelter facilities to victims of domestic violence. In addition, Victim Advocates are available to accompany victims through the court process to provide emotional support. The Victim Advocates are not attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. 24-hr Crisis Line: (303) 343-1851.

Gilpin County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Pkwy. Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4300 (Fax) ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Jefferson County Department of Social Services.

Grand County Child Support Enforcement Unit

620 Hemlock
P.O. Box 204
Hot Sulphur Springs, CO 80451
(970) 725-3331
(970) 725-3696 (Fax)
phillip.maes@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing

and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Jackson County.

Grandparents Resource Center

P.O. Box 27064 Denver, CO 80227 (303) 980-5707 (810) 885-8281 (Fax)

Provides counseling and advocacy to grandparents/parents without custody who seek custody or visitation with grandchildren/children. Attorney on staff to answer legal questions on a sliding scale fee basis. Free legal referrals. Fee: Sliding scale. Free legal referrals.

Gunnison County Child Support Enforcement Unit

225 North Pine Street, Suite A Gunnison, CO 81230 (970) 641-3244 (970) 641-3738 (Fax) sharon.deetz@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also

provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Hinsdale County.

Hinsdale County Child Support Enforcement Unit

225 North Pine Street, #A Gunnison, CO 81230 (970) 641-3244 (970) 641-3738 (Fax) sharon.deetz@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served

by Gunnison County Department of Social Services.

Huerfano County Child Support Enforcement Unit

121 West 6th Street Walsenburg, CO 81089 (719) 738-2810 (719) 738-2549 (Fax) hcdss@webcoast2coast.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Indian Law Clinic, Univ. of CO at Boulder

Jill Tompkins, Executive Director Campus Box 404 Boulder, CO 80309 (303) 492-0966 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

The Indian Law Clinic represents Indian people and groups or tribes with unique Federal Indian Law issues. The clinic serves Denver and Boulder-area Native Americans. The Clinic works on issues such as the Indian Child Welfare Act, denial of health or education benefits, and employment discrimination cases.

Jackson County Child Support Enforcement Unit

620 Hemlock
P.O. Box 204
Hot Sulphur Springs, CO 80480
(970) 725-3331
(970) 725-3696 (Fax)
phillip.maes@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Grand County Department of Social Services.

Jefferson County Child Support Enforcement Unit

900 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO 80401 (303) 271-4300 (303) 271-4091 (Fax) http://ww12.co.jefferson.co.us kdyer@jeffco.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Clear Creek and Gilpin counties.

Jefferson County Divorce Clinics

100 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO (303) 271-6102 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms)

Jefferson County offers FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing for a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court or on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). The clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to available options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Clinics are held on the 2nd Wednesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Kiowa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1305 Goff St., Courthouse P.O. Box 187 Eads, CO 80461 (719) 438-5541 (719) 438-5370 (Fax) dennis.pearson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Kit Carson County Child Support Enforcement Unit

252 South 14th Street P.O. Box 70 Burlington, CO 80807 (719) 346-8732 (719) 346-8066 (Fax) lorraine.madder@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do

not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

La Plata County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1060 E. Second Avenue Durango, CO 81301 (970) 382-6144 (970) 385-5269 (Fax) http://co.laplata.co.us/ humansvces.htm patricia.carlson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves San Juan County.

Lake County Child Support Enforcement

Unit

112 1/2 W 5th Street P.O. Box 884 Leadville, CO 80461 (719) 486-1673 (719) 486-4164 (Fax) carmen.mora@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Larimer County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1501 Blue Spruce Drive Fort Collins, CO 81524-2000 (970) 498-6458 (970) 498-6310 (Fax) http://www.co.larimer.co.us/depts/humanservices/ child_support.htm bernscba@co.larimer.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families

when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Las Animas County Child Support Enforcement Unit

204 South Chestnut Street Trinidad, CO 81082 (719) 846-2276 (719) 846-4269 (Fax) cse@activematrix.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Lincoln County Child Support Enforcement Unit

4000 Justice Way, #2250 Castle Rock, CO 80104

(720) 874-8700 (303) 814-7014 (Fax) http://www.douglas.co.us/ Services.htm childsupport@da18.state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Douglas County Department of Social Services.

Logan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

508 South 10th Avenue
P.O. Box 1746
Sterling, CO 80751
(970) 522-2194
(970) 521-0853 (Fax)
http://www.loganco.gov/social/
Default.htm
charla.peterson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support.

The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Mesa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

510 29 1/2 Road P.O. Box 20000 Grand Junction, CO 81502-5035 (971) 248-2780 (970) 248-2883 (Fax) http://www.mesacounty.info; http://www.mcdss.co.gov/

kamde@mcdss.co.gov

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Metro Volunteer Lawyers

Sally Maresh, Director

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor, #400 Denver, CO 80203

(303) 837-1313 (303) 830-8210 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.denbar.org/mvl/metrovl

Volunteer attorneys provide representation to INDIGENT clients in certain types of civil cases including family law, bankruptcy, insurance, wills and guardianship. POTENTIAL CLIENTS MUST FIRST CONTACT COLORADO LEGAL SERVICES at (303) 837-1313 for a telephone interview before contacting Metro Volunteer Lawyers. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Adams, Arapahoe, Denver, Douglas, Elbert, Jefferson.

Mineral County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1015 6th Street P.O. Box 40 Del Norte, CO 81132 (719) 657-3381 (719) 657-4013 (Fax) james.berg@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time

application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Rio Grande County Department of Social Services.

Moffat County Child Support Enforcement Unit

595 Breeze Street Craig, CO 81625 (970) 824-8282 (970) 824-9552 (Fax) http://www.co.moffat.co.us/ SocialServices laura.willems@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Montezuma County Child Support Enforcement Unit

109 W. Main Street, #203 (Courthouse) Cortez, CO 81321-3179 (970) 565-3769 (970) 565-0172 (Fax) nila.tortoriello@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing

and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Montrose County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 N. Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants

without income restrictions. Also serves Ouray and San Miguel counties.

Morgan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

800 E. Beaver Avenue P.O. Box 220 Fort Morgan, CO 80701 (970) 542-3530 (970) 542-3415 (Fax) marilyn.neihart@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

National Assoc. of Counsel for Children (NACC)

Marvin Ventrell, Executive Director, Colene Flynn Robinson, Staff Attorney Kempe Children's Center, 1825 Marion Street, Suite 340 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 864-5320 (303) 864-5351 (Fax)

The NACC is a national non-profit

child advocacy and professional membership association headquartered in Denver. The NACC provides training and technical assistance to attorneys and other professionals in children's court proceedings and engages in policy advocacy. The NACC also provides general information on children and the law and professional referrals to the public at no charge. The NACC does not provide direct legal services. General information on children and the law and professional referrals available to the public at no charge.

Neighborhood Justice Center, Office of the District Attorney

Jerry O'Mare, Program Manager 105 E. Vermijo Colorado Springs, CO 80903 (719) 520-6016

The Neighborhood Justice Center, a division of the Fourth Judicial District Attorney's Office, was created to help citizens peacefully resolve disputes through mediation. It is designed to help reduce the caseloads of the courts and to provide immediate help for those who experience personal as well as interpersonal conflict. To achieve these ends, the Center provides mediators who strive to assist people in finding meaningful solutions to conflict. Disputes of minor civil or criminal misdemeanors are handled. Fee: None.

Otero County Child Support Enforcement Unit

215 Raton P.O. Box 494 La Junta, CO 81050 (719) 383-3100 (719) 383-3102 (Fax) jim.stroud@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Ouray County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 N. Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement.

Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Montrose County Department of Social Services.

Park County Child Support Enforcement Unit

641 West 3rd Street
P.O. Box 1007
Salida, CO 81201
(719) 539-6627
(719) 539-6430 (Fax)
http://www.chaffee-county.com/
sozanne.dennis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Chaffee County Department of Social Services.

Phillips County Child Support Enforcement Unit

127 East Denver, Suite A Holyoke, CO 80734 (970) 854-2280 (970) 854-3637 (Fax) okconde@hotmail.com

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Pitkin County Child Support Enforcement Unit

108 8th Street, Suite 300 P.O. Box 580 Glenwood Springs, CO 81602 (970) 945-9191 (970) 928-0465 (Fax) joy.davis@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE

units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Garfield County Department of Social Services.

Project Safeguard

Victim Advocate 815 E. 22nd Avenue Denver, CO 80205-5104 (303) 863-7416

Provides legal advocacy services, NOT legal advice or representation. Also provides crisis intervention, and assistance for women who are victims of domestic violence. Volunteer legal advocates, NOT attorneys, are available at Adams, Arapahoe, and Broomfield courts to help women understand the forms for temporary and permanent restraining orders. These legal advocates will also accompany women who are victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. However, the advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. In addition, Project Safeguard offers a Divorce and Custody Clinic every Tuesday. Volunteer attorneys will be on staff to give information and answer questions. The Clinic is free. Call (303) 863-7416 to sign up. Provides assistance to women who are preparing for temporary or permanent restraining orders. Provides attorney-supervised dissolution of marriage and custody clinics, one night per week, by appointment only. Interested parties should call the Denver office. Free. Arapahoe County Office (Aurora): (303) 344-9016; Brighton Office: (303) 637-7761; Denver Dept. of Human Services Safeguard Office: (720) 944-1381.

Prowers County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1001 South Main P.O. Box 1157 Lamar, CO 81052 (719) 336-7486 (719) 336-7198 (Fax) eosbment@prowerscounty.net eosbment@prowerscounty.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Baca County.

Pueblo County Child Support Enforcement Unit

212 West 12th Street
Pueblo, CO 81003
(719) 583-6160
(719) 583-6946 (Fax)
http://www.co.pueblo.co.us/index2.htm
cherry.milosnic@dss.co.pueblo.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in

both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Rio Blanco County Child Support Enforcement Unit

345 Market Street
P.O. Box 688
Meeker, CO 81641
(970) 878-5011
(970) 878-4999 (Fax)
http://www.co.rio-branco.co.us
andrea.harmon@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Rio Grande County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1015 6th Street P.O. Box 40 Del Norte, CO 81132 (719) 657-3381 (719) 657-4013 (Fax) james.berg@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Also serves Mineral County.

Rocky Mountain Children's Law Center

1325 S. Colorado Blvd., Suite 308 Denver, CO 80222 (303) 692-1165 (303) 302-2890 (Fax)

Provides legal representation for children, primarily abused and neglected children, in dependency and neglect cases in Juvenile Court. Fee: None to represent children; sliding scale for adults.

Routt County Child Support Enforcement Unit

136 6th Street P.O. Box 772790 Steamboat Springs, CO 80477 (970) 870-5256 (970) 870-5260 (Fax) http://www.co.routt.co.us scamilletti@co.routt.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Safehouse Denver, Inc.

Kim Cini, Shelter Director, Mollie Hill, Outreach Director 1649 Downing Street Denver, CO 80218 (303) 318-9959

Community program providing one-to-one individual advocacy and support groups for women and children who are victims of domestic violence. Shelter available for women and children in domestic violence situations. Specialized services for lesbian and bisexual women. Women and children who are receiving services from Safehouse Denver relating to domestic violence will be provided with information about community resources available to them, and victim advocates may provide GENERAL information about the legal process. Victim advocates will accompany victims to court to provide emotional support. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide

legal advice or representation. Shelter phone number: (303) 830-2660; 24-hour crisis line: (303) 318-9989

Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence

(formerly Boulder County Safehouse) Lisa Calderon, Director of Advocacy Services 835 North Street Boulder, CO 80304 (303) 449-8623

The Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence provides legal advocacy and information, NOT legal advice, to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. The clinic hosts a legal information clinic on Tuesday evenings from 6:00 - 8:00 p.m. at the outreach center at 835 North Street. Volunteers will be on staff to answer general questions about legal options and forms. In addition, the Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence offers a Protective Order Clinic at the Justice Center at the corner of 6th and Canyon in Boulder from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Victim Advocates are available to provide emotional support and accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Fee: Legal Information Clinic on Tuesday evenings is free. Court advocacy services are free. Counseling services also available on a sliding scale. Crisis Line: (303) 444-2424.

Saguache County Child Support Enforcement Unit

605 Christy Avenue P.O. Box 215 Saguache, CO 81149 (719) 655-2537 (719) 655-0206 (Fax) jeannie.norris@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

San Juan County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1060 East Second Avenue Durango, CO 81301 (970) 382-6144 (970) 385-5269 (Fax) http://co.laplata.co.us/ humansvces.htm

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the

interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by La Plata County Department of Social Services.

San Miguel County Child Support Enforcement Unit

1200 North Grand Avenue, #C Montrose, CO 81401 (970) 252-4200 (970) 252-4210 (Fax) http://www.co.montrose.co.us/ pmewes@co.montrose.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions. Served by Montrose County Department of Social Services.

Sedgwick County Child Support Enforcement Unit

118 West 3rd Street P.O. Box 27 Julesburg, CO 80737 (970) 474-3397 (970) 474-9881 (Fax)

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Summit County Child Support Enforcement Unit

37 County Road 1005 P.O. Box 869 Frisco, CO 80443 (970) 668-4100 (970) 668-4115 (Fax) sueg@co.summit.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is

seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Teller County Child Support Enforcement Unit

18401 East Hwy 24, Suite 214
P.O. Box 6688
Woodland Park, CO 80866
(719) 686-8639
(866) 280-3720
(719) 686-9127 (Fax)
http://www.co-childsupport.com/teller

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

The Colorado and Denver Bar Association Volunteer Court Mediation Project

Patrick Kenney, VCMP Executive Director, CBA Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee 1900 Grant Street, Ninth Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 757-5000 kenneylaw@aol.com

The Volunteer Court Mediation Project provides mediation services to parties in civil lawsuits in Denver's Samll Claims Courts and County Courts. Trained and experienced volunteer mediators provide services at no cost, at the courthouse, on the day of a scheduled trial or hearing in the case. No fee, but dispute must be in Small Claims Court or County Court, and must be for less than \$15,000.

The Colorado Anti-Violence Program

Denise de Percin, Director P.O. Box 181085 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 839-5204 (303) 839-5205 (Fax)

The Anti-Violence Program maintains a database of attorneys for referral for legal services. Provides court accompaniment for gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender victims of domestic violence and/or hate crimes. Helps clients understand the restraining order process and accompany them to court for emotional support if they choose to seek a temporary or permanent restraining order against an abusive partner. The Colorado Anti-Violence Program does NOT have an attorney on staff, and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Free.

University of Colorado Legal Aid and Defender Program

Campus Box 404, Fleming Law Building Boulder, CO 80309-4404 (303) 492-8126 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

Represents indigent clients who live

in Boulder County or who must appear in Boulder County courts on misdemeanor, criminal, and traffic charges. Also represents indigent clients in most civil cases (excluding workers' compensation, bankruptcy, and child custody). Open for new clients during the spring and fall semesters only. Fee: \$15 one time charge. By appointment only, September - October and January – February.

Victim Assistance Unit, Denver Police Department

Zoe Livingston-Poole, 1331 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204 (720) 913-6035

Victim Assistance Unit provides onscene crisis intervention services. The Victim Assistance Unit provides victims of crime with advocacy and referrals, and gives victims GENERAL information about what to do if you have been the victim of a crime. The Victim Assistance Unit does NOT provide legal advice or representation, but can provide information about the legal process. Free.

VPI-Women's Crisis Center

Jennifer Walker, Executive Director P.O. Box 367 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (303) 688-1094

VPI provides assistance to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. There is no attorney on staff, but court advocates are available to accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. These advocates CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. There is also a paralegal on staff who can help victims understand

the paperwork for Protective Orders. In addition to legal advocacy, the Women's Crisis Center provides employment assistance, peer support, information and referrals, shelter, women's and children's therapy, and S.T.E.P. parenting classes. 24hour crisis line: (303) 688-8484.

Washington County Child Support Enforcement Unit

5 East 1st Street P.O. Box 395 Akron, CO 80720 (970) 345-2238 (970) 345-2237 (Fax) jean.glosson@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Weld County Child Support Enforcement Unit

315 North 11th Avenue P.O. Box A Greeley, CO 80632 (970) 352-6933 (970) 346-7691 (Fax) http://www.co.weld.co.us/

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Yuma County Child Support Enforcement Unit

340 South Birch Wray, CO 80758 (970) 332-4877 (970) 332-4978 (Fax) phyllis.williams@state.co.us

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time

application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Health

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493- 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817(970) 243-7814 (Fax)www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but

must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities

455 Sherman Street, Suite 130 Denver, CO 80203-4403 (303) 772-0300

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally-funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse or neglect as well as addressing complaints of residents of nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Sliding scale based on income. TDD for hearing impaired: (800) 288-1376.

Housing

Colorado Civil Rights Division

Wendell L. Pryor, Director 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050 Denver, CO 80202-5143 (303) 894-2997 (303) 894-7830 (Fax) www.dora.state.co.us/Civil-Rights

The Colorado Civil Rights Division administers and enforces Colorado's civil rights laws in employment, housing, and public accommodations. The Colorado Revised Statutes (1988) prohibit discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations based on race, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, creed, color, marital status (housing and public accommodations), and familial status (housing only). Discrimination in employment based on age or marriage to a coworker is also prohibited. The CCRD implements the civil rights statutes through administrative enforcement (compliance) and outreach (research and education). Most services are free. There is a \$5 fee for copies of laws, rules, and regulations.

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Boulder

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder

law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493- 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817(970) 243-7814 (Fax)www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, Greeley

800 8th Ave, Suite 202 Greeley, CO 81101 (970) 353-7554 (970) 353-7557 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Weld.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served:

Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

Colorado Legal Services, Pueblo

1000 W. 6th Street Pueblo, CO 81001 (719) 545-6708 (800) 395-2465 (719) 545-0961 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Family Tree, Inc., Women In Crisis

Betty House, Legal Advocacy Supervisor P.O. Box 1586 Arvada, CO 80001 (303) 271-6559

Provides advocacy, safe shelter, food, clothing, an on-site health clinic, individual and group support, legal advocacy, case management, community referrals, and children's programs for victims of domestic violence. Women In Crisis also provides domestic violence prevention and community education. A family law attorney and paralegal facilitate free legal clinics the first and third Wednesday of every month, with general information about divorce, custody, separation, and restraining orders. These free clinics are held at the Family Tree building at 3805 Marshall Street in Wheat ridge. The legal clinics are meant to provide GENERAL information only, and the attorney will not provide individual legal advice or representation. In addition, victims of domestic violence can attend

Restraining Order Clinics at the Jefferson County Courthouse. The Restraining Order Clinics are held twice a day, Monday through Friday, at 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. in the Victim Witness Office of the Courthouse, which is located on the first floor. The Restraining Order Clinics are hosted by victim advocates from Family Tree, and will help victims understand the process for seeking a Temporary Restraining Order against an abuser. The victim advocates will assist victims in completing the legal forms for a Temporary Restraining Order, will accompany them through court to provide emotional support, and, once the Temporary Restraining Order is granted, will go with them to the sheriff's office to ensure that the TRO is served on the abuser. Victim advocates will also accompany victims to the Permanent Restraining Order hearing, if necessary. These victim advocates are NOT attorneys and CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. Free. 24-hour crisis line: (303) 420-6752.

Housing For All, Metro Denver Fair Housing Center

1600 Downing Street, Suite 650 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 296-6949

As a private, non-profit organization, HFA serves the community by advocating on behalf of victims of unlawful housing discrimination. HFA provides intake and assessment of fair housing complaints for referral to HUD, the Colorado Civil Rights Division, and/or private attorneys. Services offered also include fair housing training for landlords, apartment associations, realtors, community service agencies, and the general public. See HFA's publication, Fair Housing Guide: Fair Housing Today for a Better Tomorrow, which details the

specifications of the Federal Fair Housing Act and lists resources for assistance to housing discrimination victims.

Office of Fair Housing & Equal Opportunity

John E. Eubanks, Director 633 17th Street, 13th Floor Denver, CO 80202 (303) 672-5437 (303) 672-5026 (Fax) www.ezrc.hud.gov/local/shared/ working/localpro/viifheo.cfm? state=co

Enforces fair housing laws, complaints, and investigations. Individuals with housing discrimination complaints should ask for Intake Analyst Shirley Haley at extension 1389.

Safehouse Denver, Inc.

Kim Cini, Shelter Director, Mollie Hill, Outreach Director 1649 Downing Street Denver, CO 80218 (303) 318-9959

Community program providing one-to-one individual advocacy and support groups for women and children who are victims of domestic violence. Shelter available for women and children in domestic violence situations. Specialized services for lesbian and bisexual women. Women and children who are receiving services from Safehouse Denver relating to domestic violence will be provided with information about community resources available to them, and victim advocates may provide GENERAL information about the legal process. Victim advocates will accompany victims to court to provide emotional support. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Shelter phone number: (303) 830-

2660; 24-hour crisis line: (303) 318-9989.

ICWA

(Indian Child Welfare Act)

Indian Law Clinic, Univ. of CO at Boulder

Jill Tompkins, Executive Director Campus Box 404 Boulder, CO 80309 (303) 492-0966 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

The Indian Law Clinic represents Indian people and groups or tribes with unique Federal Indian Law issues. The clinic serves Denver and Boulder-area Native Americans. The Clinic works on issues such as the Indian Child Welfare Act, denial of health or education benefits, and employment discrimination cases.

National Assoc. of Counsel for Children (NACC)

Marvin Ventrell, Executive Director, Colene Flynn Robinson, Staff Attorney Kempe Children's Center, 1825 Marion Street, Suite 340 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 864-5320 (303) 864-5351 (Fax)

The NACC is a national non-profit child advocacy and professional membership association headquartered in Denver. The NACC provides training and technical assistance to attorneys and other professionals in children's court proceedings and engages in policy advocacy. The NACC also provides general information on children and the law and professional referrals to the public at no charge. The NACC does not

provide direct legal services. General information on children and the law and professional referrals available to the public at no charge.

Juvenile

National Assoc. of Counsel for Children (NACC)

Marvin Ventrell, Executive Director, Colene Flynn Robinson, Staff Attorney Kempe Children's Center, 1825 Marion Street, Suite 340 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 864-5320 (303) 864-5351 (Fax)

The NACC is a national non-profit child advocacy and professional membership association headquartered in Denver. The NACC provides training and technical assistance to attorneys and other professionals in children's court proceedings and engages in policy advocacy. The NACC also provides general information on children and the law and professional referrals to the public at no charge. The NACC does not provide direct legal services. General information on children and the law and professional referrals available to the public at no charge.

North American Indian Legal Services, Inc.

P.O. Box 150239 Lakewood, CO 80215 (720) 840-5438 (303) 988-2028 (Fax) www.nailsinc.org info@nailsinc.org

The American Indian Juvenile Justice and Advocacy Project provides attorney services, prevention services, and referral services. American Indian juveniles in Denver, Boulder, Araphaoe, Jefferson, Douglas, and Adams County may use Project services, whether tribally enrolled or not. Project attorney and referral services are generally provided at no cost to indigent Indian families.

Rocky Mountain Children's Law Center

1325 S. Colorado Blvd., Suite 308 Denver, CO 80222 (303) 692-1165 (303) 302-2890 (Fax)

Provides legal representation for children, primarily abused and neglected children, in dependency and neglect cases in Juvenile Court. Fee: None to represent children; sliding scale for adults.

Probate

Metro Volunteer Lawyers

Sally Maresh, Director

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor, #400 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-8210 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.denbar.org/mvl/metrovl

Volunteer attorneys provide representation to INDIGENT clients in certain types of civil cases including family law, bankruptcy, insurance, wills and guardianship. POTENTIAL CLIENTS MUST FIRST CONTACT COLORADO LEGAL SERVICES at (303) 837-1313 for a telephone interview before contacting Metro Volunteer Lawyers. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Adams, Arapahoe, Denver, Douglas, Elbert, Jefferson.

Pro Se (Self-Representation) Only

Alamosa County Child Support Enforcement Unit

610 State Street P.O. Box 1310 Alamosa, CO 81101 (719) 589-2581 (719) 589-9794 (Fax) lhenders@fone.net

Provides services for establishing and enforcing child support. Also provides services to locate absent, non-paying parents; establish paternity; establish medical support; and obtain child support modifications. It is important to know that the county CSE units do not represent individual families when they collect child support. The people from the CSE unit represent the interests of the state in both TANF and non-TANF cases. No attorney-client relationship or privilege exists. This means that the CSE unit is representing the interests of the state and not the interests of the individual who is seeking child support enforcement. Free if receiving TANF, one-time application fee of \$20 if not. CSE units offer services to all applicants without income restrictions.

Boulder County District Attorney's Victim/ Witness Assistance Program

1777 6th St.

Boulder, CO 80306
(303) 441-3700
boulder.da@co.boulder.co.us

Provides services to victims of crime in Boulder County. Services

include advocacy, crisis counseling, and referral. Also provides legal information and education on the criminal system and crime prevention services. Fee: None.

Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence

Lisa Calderon, Director of Advocacy Services 835 North Street Boulder, CO 80304 (303) 449-8623

Safehouse Progressive Alliance for Nonviolence provides legal advocacy and information, NOT legal advice, to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. The clinic hosts a legal information clinic on Tuesday evenings from 6:00 - 8:00 p.m. at the outreach center at 835 North Street. Volunteers will be on staff to answer general questions about legal options and forms. In addition, the Safehouse offers a Protective Order Clinic at the Justice Center at the corner of 6th and Canyon in Boulder from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Victim Advocates are available to provide emotional support and accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Fee: Legal Information Clinic on Tuesday evenings is free. Court advocacy services are free. Counseling services also available on a sliding scale. Crisis Line: (303) 444-2424.

Boulder District Court

Christine Fleetwood, Family Court Facilitator 1777 Sixth Street Boulder, CO 80306-4249 (303) 441-1717

A Divorce Orientation Video is shown every Tuesday at the Boulder County Justice Center, Courtroom F, on the First Floor, from 12:00 to 1:00 p.m. The video goes through the entire process of divorce and answers questions about divorce forms. After the thirty-minute video presentation, the Family Court Facilitator will be available to answer questions. The Family Court Facilitator will NOT provide legal advice, assistance, or representation. None.

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Bankruptcy Clinics

U.S. Bankruptcy Court, U.S. Courts Custom House Building 721 19th Street, Room 125 Denver, CO 80203 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association presents FREE informational clinics on bankruptcy for debtors. These clinics are designed for the pro se (do-it-vourself) litigant. They are intended to provide an OVERVIEW only. They will assist attendees in understanding the bankruptcy process and forms. Topics reviewed will include how bankruptcy can eliminate debts, the difference between Chapter 7 and Chapter 13, the effect on credit ratings and which forms are required for filing. Issues of creditor harassment, what a collection agency cannot say to you and how to fight back if you are harassed will also be addressed. The clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Volunteer attorneys cannot answer specific or detailed questions concerning unique individual circumstances, provide specific legal advice for individuals, or provide individual representation. Free. Clinics are held the 2nd Tuesday of each month from 1:30 - 3:00 p.m. For more information, call Carolyn

Ferber or Kari Brandt at the Denver Bar Association at (303) 860-1115.

Denver Bar Association Do-It-Yourself Small Claims and Collections Clinics

Denver County Court, Civil Division, 4th Floor 1515 Cleveland Place Denver, CO 80202 (303) 640-5132 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms); www.denbar.org (schedule)

The Denver Bar Association sponsors these FREE informational clinics to teach people how to file their own small claims cases in court, and how to collect on the judgments. Tips include gathering information, forms (where to get them and how to complete them), filing (how and where), defending your position (what to do and not do), and court procedure. Collection clinics provide tips on how to collect your judgment. General questions are welcome but the clinics WILL NOT provide explicit legal advice nor will they directly assist in completing forms. Small Claims clinics are held on the 3rd Tuesday of each month. Collections Clinics are held on the 3rd Thursday of each month.

Denver County Do-It-Yourself Divorce Clinics

1437 Bannock Street
Denver, CO
(720) 865-8440
www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms);
www.denbar.org (Denver schedule)

Denver District Court Self-Help Centers, partnered with volunteer attorneys from the Denver Bar Association, offer these FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court and on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). This clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Divorce Clinics are held in Denver County the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Denver Dept. of Human Services Clinic

Mayor's Office on Workforce Development 1200 Federal Boulevard, Room 1034 Denver, CO (720) 944-2594

This FREE informational clinic presents information about visitation/parenting time, contempt citation (family law matters only), child support issues, custody issues, and other family law issues. Although an attorney will be running the clinic, the clinic DOES NOT offer legal advice or representation and is only meant as an INFORMATIONAL RESOURCE about the how's and why's of going to court and getting things done right and legally. Free. Clinics will be offered the 3rd Tuesday of each month from 5:30 -

Family Tree, Inc., Women In Crisis

Betty House, Legal Advocacy Supervisor P.O. Box 1586 Arvada, CO 80001 (303) 271-6559

Provides advocacy, safe shelter, food, clothing, an on-site health clinic, individual and group support, legal advocacy, case management, community referrals, and children's programs for victims of domestic violence. Women In Crisis also provides domestic violence prevention and community education. A family law attorney and paralegal facilitate free legal clinics the first and third Wednesday of every month, with general information about divorce, custody, separation, and restraining orders. These free clinics are held at the Family Tree building at 3805 Marshall Street in Wheat ridge. The legal clinics are meant to provide GENERAL information only, and the attorney will not provide individual legal advice or representation. In addition, victims of domestic violence can attend Restraining Order Clinics at the Jefferson County Courthouse. The Restraining Order Clinics are held twice a day, Monday through Friday, at 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. in the Victim Witness Office of the Courthouse, which is located on the first floor. The Restraining Order Clinics are hosted by victim advocates from Family Tree, and will help victims understand the process for seeking a Temporary Restraining Order against an abuser. The victim advocates will assist victims in completing the legal forms for a Temporary Restraining Order, will accompany them through court to provide emotional support, and, once the Temporary Restraining Order is granted, will go with them to the sheriff's office to ensure that the TRO is served on the abuser. Victim advocates will also accompany victims to the Permanent Restraining Order hearing, if necessary. These victim advocates are NOT attorneys and CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. Free. 24-hour crisis line: (303) 420-6752.

Gateway Battered Women's Shelter

Jeneen Klippel-Worden, Community Relations Coordinator P.O. Box 914 Aurora, CO 80040 (303) 343-1856

Provides counseling, support services, and shelter facilities to victims of domestic violence. In addition, Victim Advocates are available to accompany victims through the court process to provide emotional support. The Victim Advocates are not attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. 24-hr Crisis Line: (303) 343-1851.

Jefferson County Divorce Clinics

100 Jefferson County Parkway Golden, CO (303) 271-6102 www.cob.uscourts.gov (forms)

Jefferson County offers FREE informational clinics that provide an overview of the divorce process (with and without children) and related forms. Volunteer attorneys provide information on filing for a divorce without the assistance of an attorney, and will cover divorce procedures and forms, child custody, child support, maintenance and property division. Participants should bring forms (available from the court or on the court website at www.courts.state.co.us). The clinic is INFORMATIONAL ONLY and, although questions are welcomed, answers will generally be confined to available options that the individual may want to consider. These clinics DO NOT provide legal advice or representation nor do they directly assist in completing court forms. Free. Clinics are held on the 2nd Wednesday of each month from 12:00 - 1:30 p.m.

Jefferson County Hall of Justice

Toni, Coordinator, Self-Help Center P.O. Box 281095 Lakewood, CO 80228-8095 (303) 271-6102

Provides pro se (do it yourself) packets of forms, help, and information (NOT legal assistance). The Self-Help Center does not accept appointments, help will be provided on a first come, first served basis. The Center can provide procedural assistance in the areas of divorces, legal separation, and district and county civil matters. Pro se forms can be purchased at the Center, and range in cost from \$.75 to \$10. Call for more information. None.

National Assoc. of Counsel for Children (NACC)

Marvin Ventrell, Executive Director, Colene Flynn Robinson, Staff Attorney Kempe Children's Center, 1825 Marion Street, Suite 340 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 864-5320 (303) 864-5351 (Fax)

The NACC is a national non-profit child advocacy and professional membership association headquartered in Denver. The NACC provides training and technical assistance to attorneys and other professionals in children's court proceedings and engages in policy advocacy. The NACC also provides general information on children and the law and professional referrals to the public at no charge. The NACC does not provide direct legal services. General information on children and the law and professional referrals available to the public at no charge.

Pro Se Resource Center

Cindy Epstein, Denver City and County Building, 1437 Bannock, Room 280A Denver, CO 80202 (720) 865-8440

Provides pro se (do it yourself) packets of forms, help, and information (not legal assistance). None.

Project Safeguard

Victim Advocate 815 E. 22nd Avenue Denver, CO 80205-5104 (303) 863-7416

Provides legal advocacy services, NOT legal advice or representation. Also provides crisis intervention, and assistance for women who are victims of domestic violence. Volunteer legal advocates, NOT attorneys, are available at Adams, Arapahoe, and Broomfield courts to help women understand the forms for temporary and permanent restraining orders. These legal advocates will also accompany women who are victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. However, the advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. In addition, Project Safeguard offers a Divorce and Custody Clinic every Tuesday. Volunteer attorneys will be on staff to give information and answer questions. The Clinic is free. Call (303) 863-7416 to sign up. Provides assistance to women who are preparing for temporary or permanent restraining orders. Provides attorney-supervised dissolution of marriage and custody clinics, one night per week, by appointment only. Interested parties should call the Denver office. Free. Arapahoe County Office (Aurora): (303) 344-9016; Brighton Office: (303) 637-7761; Denver Dept. of Human Services Safeguard Office:

(720) 944-1381

Safehouse Denver, Inc.

Kim Cini, Shelter Director, Mollie Hill, Outreach Director 1649 Downing Street Denver, CO 80218 (303) 318-9959

Community program providing one-to-one individual advocacy and support groups for women and children who are victims of domestic violence. Shelter available for women and children in domestic violence situations. Specialized services for lesbian and bisexual women. Women and children who are receiving services from Safehouse Denver relating to domestic violence will be provided with information about community resources available to them, and victim advocates may provide GENERAL information about the legal process. Victim advocates will accompany victims to court to provide emotional support. However, these victim advocates are NOT attorneys and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Shelter phone number: (303) 830-2660; 24-hour crisis line: (303) 318-9989.

The Colorado Anti-Violence Program

Denise de Percin, Director P.O. Box 181085 Denver, CO 80218 (303) 839-5204 (303) 839-5205 (Fax)

The Anti-Violence Program maintains a database of attorneys for referral for legal services. Provides court accompaniment for gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender victims of domestic violence and/or hate crimes. Helps clients understand the restraining order process and accompany them to court for emotional support if

they choose to seek a temporary or permanent restraining order against an abusive partner. The Colorado Anti-Violence Program does NOT have an attorney on staff, and cannot provide legal advice or representation. Free.

Victim Assistance Unit, Denver Police Department

Zoe Livingston-Poole, 1331 Cherokee Street Denver, CO 80204 (720) 913-6035

Victim Assistance Unit provides onscene crisis intervention services. The Victim Assistance Unit provides victims of crime with advocacy and referrals, and gives victims GENERAL information about what to do if you have been the victim of a crime. The Victim Assistance Unit does NOT provide legal advice or representation, but can provide information about the legal process. Free.

VPI-Women's Crisis Center

Jennifer Walker, Executive Director P.O. Box 367 Castle Rock, CO 80104 (303) 688-1094

VPI provides assistance to women and children who are victims of domestic violence. There is no attorney on staff, but court advocates are available to accompany victims of domestic violence through the court process to provide emotional support. These advocates CANNOT provide legal advice or representation. There is also a paralegal on staff who can help victims understand the paperwork for Protective Orders. In addition to legal advocacy, the Women's Crisis Center provides employment assistance, peer support,

information and referrals, shelter, women's and children's therapy, and S.T.E.P. parenting classes. 24-hour crisis line: (303) 688-8484.

Public Benefits

Colorado Legal Services, Monte Vista

40 N. Washington Monte Vista, CO 81144 (719) 852-3131 (719) 852-3420 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Alamosa, Conejos, Costilla, Mineral, Rio Grande, and Saguache.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities

455 Sherman Street, Suite 130 Denver, CO 80203-4403 (303) 772-0300

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People is a non-profit organization that promotes and protects the rights of people with disabilities and older people in Colorado. The Legal Center employs attorneys, paralegals, and advocates with expertise in disability law, elder law, and civil rights protection. The Legal Center provides representation in issues of special education, fair housing, access to state or federally-funded services, access to public accommodations, and protection from abuse or neglect as well as addressing complaints of residents of nursing homes and personal care boarding homes. Sliding scale based on

Income. TDD for hearing impaired: (800) 288-1376.

Office of Fair Housing & Equal Opportunity

John E. Eubanks, Director
633 17th Street, 13th Floor
Denver, CO 80202
(303) 672-5437
(303) 672-5026 (Fax)
www.ezrc.hud.gov/local/shared/
working/localpro/viifheo.cfm?
state=co

Enforces fair housing laws, complaints, and investigations. Individuals with housing discrimination complaints should ask for Intake Analyst Shirley Haley at extension 1389.

Colorado Legal Services, Buena Vista

301 E. Main, #17 Buena Vista, CO 81211 719-395-0506 719-395-0507 www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Boulder County Legal Services

Sue Parenteau, Pro Bono Coordinator 1790 30th Street, #301 Boulder, CO 80301 (303) 449-7575 (303) 447-3167 (Fax) County served: Boulder

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as

housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Boulder.

Colorado Legal Services, Colorado Springs

617 S. Nevada Ave. Colorado Springs, CO 80901 (719) 471-0380 (800) 395-2465 (719) 471-1412 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Chafee, Custer, El Paso, Fremont, Park, and Teller.

Colorado Legal Services, Durango

1474 Main Avenue, Suite 200 Durango, CO 81302 (888) 298-8483 (970) 385-8515 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, Montezuma, and San Juan. Also served: Southern Ute and Ute Mountain Ute Reservations.

Colorado Legal Services, Fort Collins

424 Pine Street

Fort Collins, CO 80521 (970) 493-2891 (970) 493- 3758 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Larimer.

Colorado Legal Services, Grand Junction

200 N. 6th Street, Suite 203Grand Junction, CO 81506(970) 243-7817(970) 243-7814 (Fax)www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Garfield and Mesa.

Colorado Legal Services, La Junta

207 1/2 Colorado Ave La Junta, CO 81050 (888) 805-5152 (719) 384-5438 (719) 394-8676 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. Counties served: Bent, Cheyenne, Crowley, Kiowa, Kit Carson, and Prowers.

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. Fee: None but must meet Federal Income Guidelines. County served: Pueblo.

Colorado Legal Services

1905 Sherman Street, 4th Floor Denver, CO 80203 (303) 837-1313 (303) 830-7860 (Fax) www.coloradolegalservices.org

Provides legal representation and advice in civil legal matters such as housing, public benefits, welfare, social security, mental health, elder law, restraining orders and divorces to indigent persons. No fee, but must meet Federal Income Guidelines.

Religious Rights

American Civil Liberties Union

Mark Silverstein, Legal Director; Sue Armstrong, Executive Director; Dipak Patel, Intake Director 400 Corona Street Denver, CO 80218-3915 (303) 777-5482 (303) 777-1773 (Fax) www.aclu-co.org; http:// freedomnet.org/aclu.html msilver2@worldnet.att.net; sarmstrong@aclu-co.org;

The ACLU is a private, non-profit, pro bono provider that defends and protects the constitutional rights of all Americans. It provides legal counsel, works on legislation, and runs an educational program. If your constitutional rights have been violated, the intake officer will ask you to write a letter describing the situation. Your letter will be

reviewed by the staff and a panel of attorneys. If the ACLU accepts your case, it will proceed on your behalf for free. Fee: None.

Colorado Civil Rights Division

Wendell L. Pryor, Director 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050 Denver, CO 80202-5143 (303) 894-2997 (303) 894-7830 (Fax) www.dora.state.co.us/Civil-Rights

The Colorado Civil Rights Division administers and enforces Colorado's civil rights laws in employment, housing, and public accommodations. The Colorado Revised Statutes (1988) prohibit discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations based on race, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, creed, color, marital status (housing and public accommodations), and familial status (housing only). Discrimination in employment based on age or marriage to a coworker is also prohibited. The CCRD implements the civil rights statutes through administrative enforcement (compliance) and outreach (research and education). Most services are free. There is a \$5 fee for copies of laws, rules, and regulations.

Tribal Government Resources

Indian Law Clinic, Univ. of CO at Boulder

Jill Tompkins, Executive Director Campus Box 404 Boulder, CO 80309 (303) 492-0966 (303) 492-4587 (Fax)

The Indian Law Clinic represents Indian people and groups or tribes with unique Federal Indian Law issues. The clinic serves Denver and Boulder-area Native Americans. The Clinic works on issues such as the Indian Child Welfare Act, denial of health or education benefits, and employment discrimination cases.

Indian Law Firms

Arnold and Porter

370 17th Street, Suite 4500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 863-1000 (303) 832-0428 (Fax)

Indian law firm.

Arnold and Porter

Alfred McDonnell 370 17th Street, Suite 4500 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 863-2316 (303) 832-0428 (Fax) alfred_mcdonnell@aporter.com

Indian law attorney.

Don Brantley Miller

Don Miller 1305 Cedar Avenue Boulder, CO 80304 (303) 545-5533

Represents tribes and tribal entities exclusively in enforcement of tribal rights, not individual Native Americans.

Maynes, Bradford, Shipps and Sheftel

West Building, 8358 E. Second Ave, Suite 123 Durango, CO 81302-2717 (970) 247-1755

Indian law firm.

dpatel@aclu-co.org

Dorsey and Whitney

370 17th Street Suite 4400 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 629-3400

Indian law firm.

Faegre and Benson, LLP

1900 15th Street Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 546-1320 (303) 449-5426 (Fax)

Indian law firm.

Greene, Meyer and McElroy

1007 Pearl Street, Suite 240 Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 442-2021

Indian law firm.

Fredericks, Pelcyger, Hester and White

1075 S. Boulder Road, Suite 305 Louisville, CO 80027 (303) 673-9600

Indian law firm.

Smith & Jolly, LLC.

12471 Clermont Street Denver, CO 80241 (303) 947-1366 (303) 379-7495 (Fax) http://www.sjndnlaw.com

Indian law firm.

Wagenlander and Heisterkamp

1700 Broadway St. Suite 1202 Denver, CO 80290-1201 (303) 832-6511 wagenlan@wagenlander.com Indian law firm.

Whiteing and Smith

1136 Pearl Street Boulder, CO 80302 (303) 444-2549

Indian law firm

Notes